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PART I — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
MOODY NATIONAL REIT I, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(unaudited)
March 31,
2017

ASSETS
Investment in hotel properties, net ...........................................................................
Cash and cash equivalents ........................................................................................
Restricted cash..........................................................................................................
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $30,000 as of March 31, 2017 and
December 31, 2016 ...............................................................................................
Notes receivable from related parties .......................................................................
Prepaid expenses and other assets ............................................................................
Deferred costs, net of accumulated amortization of $162,211 and $145,119 as of
March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively .........................................
Due from related parties ...........................................................................................
Total Assets ................................................................................................................
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Notes payable, net of unamortized debt issuance costs of $2,015,117 and
$2,192,164 as of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively .............
Accounts payable and accrued expenses ..................................................................
Due to related parties ................................................................................................
Dividends payable ....................................................................................................
Operating partnership distributions payable .............................................................

$

December 31,
2016

236,883,028
3,061,270
4,500,575

$

238,165,886
2,419,383
5,684,811

1,050,291
12,500,000
4,096,155

949,616
13,500,000
3,163,089

897,789
1,774,500

914,881
2,452,300

$

264,763,608

$

267,249,966

$

169,158,994
6,223,289
1,610,285
903,958
49,404

$

169,445,086
5,131,497
1,145,500
901,702
49,256

Total Liabilities ..........................................................................................................

177,945,930

176,673,041

Special Partnership Units – 100 Special Units of the Operating Partnership ......

1,000

1,000

—

—

Commitments and Contingencies – Note 10
Equity:
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value per share; 50,000,000 shares authorized, no
shares issued and outstanding ...............................................................................
Common stock, $0.01 par value per share; 400,000,000 shares authorized,
13,303,908 and 13,307,394 shares issued and outstanding at March 31, 2017
and December 31, 2016, respectively ...................................................................
Additional paid-in capital .........................................................................................
Accumulated deficit .................................................................................................
Total stockholders’ equity ........................................................................................
Noncontrolling interests in Operating Partnership .......................................................
Total Equity ................................................................................................................
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY ...................................................................

133,039
116,613,809
(36,119,768)
80,627,080
6,189,598
86,816,678
$

264,763,608

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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133,074
116,651,244
(32,590,777)
84,193,541
6,382,384
90,575,925
$

267,249,966

MOODY NATIONAL REIT I, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(unaudited)
Three Months Ended
March 31,
2017
2016
Revenue
Room revenue ...................................................................................................................
$
Other revenue ....................................................................................................................
Total hotel revenue ........................................................................................................
Interest income from notes receivable ...............................................................................
Total revenue .................................................................................................................

13,603,067
832,481
14,435,548
410,600
14,846,148

Expenses
Hotel operating expenses ...................................................................................................
Property taxes, insurance and other ...................................................................................
Depreciation and amortization ..........................................................................................
Acquisition expenses .........................................................................................................
Corporate general and administrative ................................................................................
Total expenses................................................................................................................

9,008,281
996,900
2,671,060
96,162
1,127,658
13,900,061

8,463,385
905,909
2,778,327
—
1,200,836
13,348,457

Operating income ................................................................................................................

946,087

764,935

Interest expense and amortization of debt issuance costs .....................................................

2,301,341

2,322,178

Loss before income tax expense .........................................................................................
Income tax benefit ................................................................................................................

(1,355,254)
401,703

(1,557,243)
257,000

Net loss .................................................................................................................................
Income attributable to noncontrolling interests from consolidated joint ventures ................
Loss attributable to noncontrolling interests in Operating Partnership .................................
$
Net loss attributable to common stockholders..................................................................

(953,551)
—
49,393
(904,158)

(1,300,243)
(19,657)
69,206
(1,250,694)

Per-share information – basic and diluted:
Net loss attributable to common stockholders ......................................................................
$
Dividends declared ...............................................................................................................
$
Weighted average common shares outstanding ....................................................................

(0.07)
0.20
13,306,155

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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$

$

$
$

12,858,346
809,831
13,668,177
445,215
14,113,392

(0.10)
0.20
13,135,326

MOODY NATIONAL REIT I, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EQUITY
Three Months Ended March 31, 2017
(unaudited)

Preferred
Stock
Number
of
Par
Shares
Value
Balance at December 31,
2016 ...................................
Redemption of common
stock...................................
Net loss ...................................
Dividends and distributions
declared..............................
Balance at March 31,
2017 ...................................

—

$

—

Common Stock
Number of
Shares

13,307,394

Par
Value

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

$ 133,074

$ 116,651,244

—
—

—
—

—

—

—

—

—

—

13,303,908

$ 133,039

$ 116,613,809

—

$

(3,486)
—

(35)
—

Accumulated
Deficit

$

(37,435)
—

$

$ 6,382,384

Total
Equity

(32,590,777)

726,920

—
(904,158)

—
—

—
(49,393 )

(37,470)
(953,551)

(2,624,833)

—

(143,393 )

(2,768,226)

(36,119,768)

726,920

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Noncontrolling
Interests in
Operating
Partnership
Number
of
Units
Value

$ 6,189,598

$ 90,575,925

$ 86,816,678

MOODY NATIONAL REIT I, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(unaudited)
Three Months Ended
March 31,
2017
2016
Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss ...........................................................................................................................
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization ....................................................................................
Amortization of debt issuance costs ............................................................................
Stock-based compensation ..........................................................................................
Deferred income tax ....................................................................................................
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Restricted cash .........................................................................................................
Accounts receivable .................................................................................................
Prepaid expenses and other assets ............................................................................
Accounts payable and accrued expenses..................................................................
Due to/from related parties ......................................................................................
Net cash provided by operating activities .............................................................

$

(953,551)

$

(1,300,243)

2,671,060
177,047
—
(446,000)

2,778,327
150,266
7,000
(307,000)

536,451
(100,675)
(487,066)
1,091,792
1,142,585
3,631,643

1,774,627
(166,004)
(310,275)
(441,985)
(324,846)
1,859,867

Cash flows from investing activities
Decrease in restricted cash ..........................................................................................
Earnest money and deposits ........................................................................................
Repayments of notes receivable from related parties ..................................................
Repayments of mortgage note receivable ....................................................................
Due from related parties ..............................................................................................
Improvements and additions to hotel properties ..........................................................
Net cash provided by investing activities .................................................................

647, 785
—
1,000,000
—
—
(1,371,110)
276,675

3,096,312
2,125,000
—
55,942
(1,000,000)
(3,638,761)
638,493

Cash flows from financing activities
Redemptions of common stock ...................................................................................
Offering costs ..............................................................................................................
Dividends paid.............................................................................................................
Operating partnership distributions paid .....................................................................
Repayments of notes payable ......................................................................................
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in joint ventures ..........................................
Net cash used in financing activities ........................................................................

(37,470)
—
(2,622,577)
(143,245)
(463,139)
—
(3,266,431)

(190,230)
(129,153)
(1,643,571)
(144,700)
(416,648)
(12,121)
(2,536,423)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents ........................................................................
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ..........................................................
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ....................................................................

$

641,887
2,419,383
3,061,270

$

(38,063)
14,071,228
14,033,165

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Interest paid .................................................................................................................
Income taxes paid ........................................................................................................

$
$

2,125,821
279

$
$

2,173,187
45,918

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activity
Decrease in accrued offering costs due to related party ..............................................
Issuance of common stock from dividend reinvestment plan ......................................
Dividends payable .......................................................................................................
Operating partnership distributions payable ................................................................

$
$
$
$

—
—
903,958
49,404

$
$
$
$

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(129,153)
965,287
891,781
49,281

Moody National REIT I, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2017
(unaudited)
1.

Organization

Moody National REIT I, Inc. (the “Company”) was formed on January 15, 2008 as a Maryland corporation and elected
to qualify as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) commencing with the year ended December 31, 2011. The Company was
organized to acquire a diverse portfolio of real properties, primarily in the hospitality sector, as well as other commercial
properties, real estate securities and debt-related investments. The Company was initially capitalized with the sale of shares
of its common stock to Moody National REIT Sponsor, LLC (“Sponsor”) on February 19, 2008. The Company’s fiscal year
end is December 31. For more information on the Company’s capitalization, see Note 6 (“Equity”).
As of March 31, 2017, the Company owned (1) ten hotel properties located in Texas, Tennessee, South Carolina and
Pennsylvania, comprising a total of 1,273 rooms, (2) a joint venture interest in a 227-suite hotel property located in
Lyndhurst, New Jersey and a joint venture interest in a 95-suite hotel property in Fort Worth, Texas, (3) a loan in the current
principal amount of $8,000,000 originated to an affiliate of Sponsor used to acquire a commercial property located in Katy,
Texas and (4) a loan in the aggregate principal amount of $4,500,000 originated to an affiliate of Sponsor used to acquire a
commercial property located in Houston, Texas. For more information on the Company’s portfolio, see Notes 3 (“Investment
in Hotel Properties”) and 4 (“Notes Receivable”).
On April 15, 2009, the Company commenced its initial public offering (the “Initial Public Offering”) pursuant to a
registration statement on Form S-11 with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) to offer a maximum of
$1,000,000,000 in shares of its common stock to the public in its primary offering and up to $100,000,000 in shares of its
common stock to its stockholders pursuant to its distribution reinvestment plan (the “DRIP”). The Company accepted
subscriptions for, and issued, 1,126,253 shares of its common stock in its Initial Public Offering, including 29,582 shares of
common stock pursuant to the DRIP, resulting in aggregate gross offering proceeds of $10,966,713. On October 12, 2012, the
Company terminated its Initial Public Offering.
On October 12, 2012, the Company commenced its follow-on public offering (the “Follow-On Offering”) of up to
$1,000,000,000 in shares of the Company’s common stock, comprised of up to $900,000,000 in shares offered to the public
in the primary offering and up to $100,000,000 in shares offered to its stockholders pursuant to the DRIP. Effective February
20, 2015, the Company terminated the offer and sale of shares to the public in the primary portion of the Follow-On Offering,
but continued to offer shares of common stock pursuant to the DRIP. As of the termination of the Follow-On Offering, the
Company had accepted investors’ subscriptions for, and issued, 11,716,151 shares of its common stock in the Follow-On
Offering, including 510,457 shares of common stock issued pursuant to the DRIP, resulting in aggregate gross offering
proceeds of $112,056,934. On November 4, 2015, the Company filed a new registration statement to register the sale of up to
$25,000,000 in shares of the Company’s common stock pursuant to the DRIP (“DRIP Offering”). The DRIP was suspended
in October 2016. As of March 31, 2017, the Company had accepted subscriptions for, and issued, 12,842,404 shares of
common stock in the Company’s Initial Public Offering and Follow-On Offering, including 540,039 shares of common stock
pursuant to the DRIP, resulting in aggregate gross offering proceeds of $123,023,647. As of March 31, 2017, the Company
had sold 388,033 shares pursuant to the DRIP in the DRIP Offering, and 2,111,967 shares of common stock remained
available for sale pursuant to the DRIP Offering.
Subject to the Mergers (defined below), the Company intends to use substantially all of the remaining net proceeds from
the foregoing offerings and the proceeds from any other offering of the Company’s securities that the Company may conduct
in the future to continue to acquire a diversified portfolio of real properties, real estate securities and debt-related
investments. The Company intends to continue to invest primarily in hotel properties located in the United States and Canada
that it owns exclusively or in joint ventures or other co-ownership arrangements with other persons. The Company may also
invest in other property types consisting of multifamily, office, retail and industrial assets located in the United States and
Canada as well as securities of real estate companies and debt-related investments. The Company may also make
opportunistic investments in properties that may be under-developed or newly constructed and in properties that it believes
are undervalued.
The Company’s advisor is Moody National Advisor I, LLC (“Advisor”), a Delaware limited liability company and an
affiliate of Sponsor. Subject to certain restrictions and limitations, Advisor is responsible for managing the Company’s affairs
on a day-to-day basis and for identifying and making acquisitions and investments on behalf of the Company pursuant to an
advisory agreement (the “Advisory Agreement”) by and among the Company, Moody National Operating Partnership I, L.P.,
the Company’s operating partnership (the “OP”), and Advisor.
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Moody National REIT I, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2017
(unaudited)
The OP’s limited partnership agreement provides that the OP will be operated in a manner that will enable the Company to (1)
satisfy the requirements for being classified as a REIT for tax purposes, (2) avoid any federal income or excise tax liability and (3)
ensure that the OP will not be classified as a “publicly traded partnership” for purposes of Section 7704 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Internal Revenue Code”), which classification could result in the OP being taxed as a corporation
rather than as a partnership. In addition to the administrative and operating costs and expenses incurred by the OP in acquiring and
operating real estate assets, the OP will pay all of the Company’s administrative costs and expenses, and such expenses will be
treated as expenses of the OP. The common limited partnership units of the OP may be tendered for redemption once they have
been outstanding for at least one year. At such time, the Company has the option to redeem the common limited partnership units
for shares of the Company’s common stock, cash or a combination thereof at the Company’s sole discretion. The special limited
partnership units of the OP (the “Special Units”) held by an affiliate of Advisor will be redeemed pursuant to the OP’s partnership
agreement upon the termination or nonrenewal of the Advisory Agreement or upon certain other events outside of the control of the
Special Unit holder. Upon the termination or nonrenewal of the Advisory Agreement by the Company for “cause” (as defined in the
Advisory Agreement), all of the Special Units will be redeemed for $1.00. As described in more detail in Note 9 (“Subordinated
Participation Interest”), upon the occurrence of any of the other events which trigger redemption of the Special Units, the Special
Units will be redeemed, at Advisor’s option, for shares of the Company’s common stock, a non-interest bearing promissory note
payable solely from the proceeds of asset sales, or a combination thereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Mergers (as
described below) are completed, all of the Special Units will be cancelled and retired and cease to exist, and the only payment made
in respect of the Special Units will be a promote payment not to exceed $613,751.
Pending Merger with Moody National REIT II, Inc.
On September 27, 2016, the Company jointly announced with Moody National REIT II, Inc. (“Moody II”) that the Company
had entered into a non-binding Letter of Intent that set forth the terms and conditions upon which Moody II would acquire the
Company and the Company’s subsidiaries.
On November 16, 2016, the Company, the OP, Advisor, Moody II, Moody National Operating Partnership II, LP, the operating
partnership of Moody II (“Moody II OP”), Moody National Advisor II, LLC, Moody II’s advisor (“Moody II Advisor”), and Moody
Merger Sub, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of Moody II (the “Merger Sub”), entered into an agreement and plan of merger (the
“Merger Agreement”). Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, the Company will merge with and into Merger Sub, with Merger Sub
continuing as the surviving entity and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Moody II. The foregoing transaction is referred to herein as the
“Merger.” In addition, pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Moody II OP will merge with and into the OP, with the OP being
referred to as the “Surviving Partnership,” and which transaction is referred to herein as the “Partnership Merger.” Unless context
suggests otherwise, the Merger and the Partnership Merger shall be referred to herein together as the “Mergers.” The Merger
Agreement was the product of a negotiation between a special committee of the Company’s board of directors and a special
committee of the board of directors of Moody II (both consisting solely of independent directors), each of which was represented by
its own counsel and financial advisor. Entry into the Merger Agreement was unanimously approved by the Company’s board of
directors upon the recommendation of the special committee of the Company’s board of directors.
Subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, Moody II agreed to pay gross consideration of $11.00 per share
of the Company’s common stock, which amount will be reduced by all fees and expenses that the Company incurs as a result of or
in connection with the Mergers and other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement (including certain disposition fees
and profit sharing amounts to Sponsor and parties related thereto, financial advisory and legal fees payable by the Company, and
other transaction and closing costs incurred by the Company) (all such fees and expenses, the “Moody I Transaction Fees and
Expenses”) to arrive at the net Merger Consideration (as described below) payable to the holders of the Company’s common stock,
which is referred to herein as the “Net Per Share Price;” provided, that in no event will the Net Per Share Price be less than $10.25.
Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, the parties thereto have determined the final amount of the Moody I Transaction
Fees and Expenses and have calculated the Net Per Share Price. Based on such determination, Net Per Share Price was determined
to be $10.25.
At the effective time of the Merger, each outstanding share of the Company’s common stock will be automatically cancelled
and retired, and converted into the right to receive, at the election of each holder of such share of the Company’s common stock, but
subject to the limitations discussed below, either:
(i) an amount in cash equal to the Net Per Share Price (the “Cash Consideration”); or
(ii) a number of shares of common stock of Moody II (the “Stock Consideration”) equal to the Net Per Share Price divided by
$25.00; with such quotient, as adjusted pursuant to the Merger Agreement, being referred to herein as the “Exchange Ratio.”
The “Stock Consideration” and the “Cash Consideration” are referred to together as the “Merger Consideration.”
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Moody National REIT I, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2017
(unaudited)
Notwithstanding the above, the maximum number of shares of the Company’s common stock that may be converted into
the right to receive the Cash Consideration may not exceed 50% of the aggregate number of shares of the Company’s
common stock entitled to receive Merger Consideration in connection with the Merger. If the elections of the Company’s
stockholders would cause more than 50% of the aggregate number of shares of the Company’s common stock to be
converted into the right to receive the Cash Consideration, then the shares of the Company’s common stock that would be
converted into the right to receive the Cash Consideration will be reduced proportionally so that the number of shares of the
Company’s common stock that will be converted into the right to receive the Cash Consideration will not exceed 50%, and
the remaining shares of the Company’s common stock will be converted into the right to receive the Stock Consideration.
Subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, at the effective time of the Partnership Merger, each
outstanding unit of limited partnership interest in the OP will be automatically cancelled and retired, and converted into the
right to receive a number of units of limited partnership interests in the Surviving Partnership equal to the exchange ratio.
Each unit of limited partnership interest in the OP designated as a special partnership unit pursuant to the OP’s limited
partnership agreement will be automatically cancelled and retired and shall cease to exist, and no Merger Consideration shall
be paid, nor, except as expressly provided in the Termination Agreement (described below), shall any other payment or right
inure or be made with respect thereto in connection with or as a consequence of the Partnership Merger. Each outstanding
unit of limited partnership interest in Moody II OP will be converted into one unit of equity ownership in the Surviving
Partnership, and each unit designated as a special partnership unit pursuant to the limited partnership agreement of Moody II
OP will be converted into one special unit in the Surviving Partnership.
The Merger Agreement contains customary covenants, including covenants prohibiting the Company and its subsidiaries
and representatives from soliciting, providing information or entering into discussions concerning proposals relating to
alternative business combination transactions, subject to certain limited exceptions. However, under the terms of the Merger
Agreement, during the period beginning on November 16, 2016 and continuing until 11:59 p.m. New York City time on
December 31, 2016 (the “Go Shop Period End Time”), the Company had the right to initiate, solicit, provide information and
enter into discussions concerning proposals relating to alternative business combination transactions. Additionally, for up to
five business days after the Go Shop Period End Time, the Company had the right to continue to participate in such
discussions with certain other parties (a “Go Shop Bidder”) and could have, subject to certain conditions set forth in the
Merger Agreement regarding the proposal made by such Go Shop Bidder, terminated the Merger Agreement and entered into
an agreement with a Go Shop Bidder with respect to the proposal made by such Go Shop Bidder.
In the go shop process described in the preceding paragraph, 99 prospective buyers, including 77 prospective financial
buyers and 22 prospective strategic buyers, were contacted regarding each such party’s potential interest in exploring a
transaction with the Company. During the go shop period (i.e., between November 16, 2016 and December 31, 2016), seven
parties (two of which were financial buyers and five of which were strategic buyers) negotiated and entered into
confidentiality agreements with the Company and were provided with non-public information about the Company. None of
the parties contacted during the go shop process, including the seven parties that entered into confidentiality agreements with
the Company, submitted a proposal that was deemed an “Acquisition Proposal” under the Merger Agreement to the Company
prior to the Go Shop Period End Time.
Additionally, in connection with the Merger, the Company will also seek the approval of its stockholders of an
amendment to the Company’s charter to delete certain provisions regarding roll-up transactions (the “Charter Amendment”).
Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, approval by the Company’s stockholders of the Charter Amendment is a condition to
completing the Mergers.
Concurrently with the entry into the Merger Agreement, the Company, the OP, Advisor, Moody II, Moody National
Realty Company, LP (“Moody National”), and Moody OP Holdings I, LLC (“OP Holdings”) entered into a termination
agreement (the “Termination Agreement”). Pursuant to the Termination Agreement, at the effective time of the Mergers, the
Advisory Agreement among the Company, the OP, Advisor and Moody National will be terminated and the Company will
pay Advisor a payment of $5,580,685 (the “Moody I Advisor Payment”). The Moody I Advisor Payment was a negotiated
amount that represents a reduction in the disposition fee to which Advisor could have been entitled and a waiver of any other
contractual termination fee that Advisor would have been due under the Advisory Agreement in connection with the Mergers.
In addition, the Termination Agreement provides that at the effective time of the Partnership Merger and in accordance with
the terms of the limited partnership agreement of the OP, the OP will pay to OP Holdings an amount not to exceed $613,751
(the “Promote Payment”). In the event that the Merger Agreement is terminated prior to the consummation of the Mergers,
the Termination Agreement will automatically terminate and be of no further effect and no Moody I Advisor Payment or
Promote Payment will be owed and payable.
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March 31, 2017
(unaudited)
Also concurrently with the entry into the Merger Agreement, Moody II, Moody II OP and Moody II Advisor entered into
an amended and restated advisory agreement, pursuant to which Moody II will be obligated to pay Moody II Advisor an
acquisition fee of 1.5% of the aggregate Cash Consideration paid in the Merger. However, during the first year following the
consummation of the Mergers, if Moody II sells a property that was previously owned by the Company, then any disposition
fee to which Moody II Advisor would otherwise be entitled under the amended and restated advisory agreement will be
reduced by an amount equal to the portion of the Moody I Advisor Payment attributable to such property.
The Merger Agreement may be terminated under certain circumstances by both Moody II and the Company. If such
termination occurs under certain circumstances, then the Company would be obligated to pay Moody II a termination fee of
$2,000,000 (of $1,000,000 if the Merger Agreement had been terminated pursuant to the go shop provisions therein), plus an
expense reimbursement fee of up to $500,000. The Merger Agreement also provides that one party may be required to
reimburse the other party’s expenses, up to $500,000, if the Merger Agreement is terminated under certain circumstances.
The obligation of each party to consummate the Mergers is subject to a number of conditions, including the approval of
the Company’s stockholders, receipt of any regulatory approvals, delivery of certain documents and consents, the truth and
correctness of the representations and warranties of the parties, subject to the materiality standards contained in the Merger
Agreement, and the absence of a material adverse effect with respect to either the Company or Moody II. There is no
guarantee that the Mergers will close. A special meeting of the Company’s stockholders to vote on the Merger and the
Charter Amendment is currently scheduled to be held on May 24, 2017. The Company’s management has, and will continue
to, expend time and resources to consummate the Mergers, which time and resources may otherwise have been allocated to
the Company’s other operational needs.
In connection with the Mergers, on February 2, 2017, Moody II entered into a stockholder servicing coordination
agreement (the “Stockholder Servicing Coordination Agreement”) with Moody Securities, LLC (“Moody Securities”), the
dealer manager of the Company’s Initial Public Offering and Follow-On Offering. Pursuant to the Stockholder Servicing
Coordination Agreement, Moody II will pay to Moody Securities certain stockholder servicing fees (the “Stockholder
Servicing Fees”), of up to $2.125 per share of Moody II’s common stock issued as stock consideration. All Stockholder
Servicing Fees will be re-allowed to broker-dealers that provide ongoing financial advisory services to the Company’s
stockholders and that enter into participating broker-dealer agreements with Moody Securities. The aggregate amount of
Stockholder Servicing Fees will depend on the number of shares of Moody II’s common stock issued as stock consideration,
and could range from approximately $5,797,034 to $11,594,068, assuming that the maximum stockholder servicing fee of
$2.125 per share is paid for all shares issued as stock consideration. No Stockholder Servicing Fees will be paid with respect
to any cash paid by Moody II as cash consideration in the Merger.
2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation

The Company’s consolidated financial statements include its accounts and the accounts of its subsidiaries over which it
has control. All intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.
The Company includes the accounts of certain entities in its consolidated financial statements when the Company is the
primary beneficiary for entities deemed to be variable interest entities (“VIEs”) through which the Company has a controlling
interest. Interests in entities acquired are evaluated based on U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”), which
requires the consolidation of VIEs in which the Company is deemed to have the controlling financial interest. The Company
has the controlling financial interest if the Company has the power to direct the activities of the VIE that most significantly
impact its economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses or receive benefits from the VIE that could be
significant to the Company. If the interest in the entity is determined not to be a VIE, then the entity is evaluated for
consolidation based on legal form, economic substance and the extent to which the Company has control or substantive
participating rights under the respective ownership agreement. There are judgments and estimates involved in determining if
an entity in which the Company has an investment is a VIE. The entity is evaluated to determine if it is a VIE by determining,
among other things, if the equity investors as a group have a controlling financial interest in the entity and if the entity has
sufficient equity at risk to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support. The Company did not have
a VIE interest as of March 31, 2017 or December 31, 2016.
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The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
GAAP for interim financial statements and the rules and regulations of the SEC. Accordingly, the unaudited consolidated
financial statements do not include all of the information and footnotes required by GAAP for complete financial statements.
In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair
presentation have been included. Operating results for the three months ended March 31, 2017 are not necessarily indicative
of the results that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2017. For further information, readers should refer to
the audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2016, which was filed with the SEC on March 23, 2017.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the accompanying consolidated
financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.
Organization and Offering Costs
Organization and offering costs of the Company are paid directly by the Company or may be incurred by Advisor on behalf
of the Company. Pursuant to the Advisory Agreement, the Company is obligated to reimburse Advisor or its affiliates, as
applicable, for organization and offering costs incurred by Advisor associated with each of the Company’s public offerings,
provided that within 60 days of the last day of the month in which a public offering ends, Advisor is obligated to reimburse the
Company to the extent organization and offering costs incurred by the Company in connection with the completed public
offering exceed 15.0% of the gross offering proceeds from the sale of the Company’s shares of common stock in the completed
public offering. Such organization and offering costs include selling commissions and dealer manager fees paid to a dealer
manager, legal, accounting, printing and other offering expenses, including marketing, salaries and direct expenses of Advisor’s
employees and employees of Advisor’s affiliates and others. Any reimbursement of Advisor or its affiliates for organization and
offering costs will not exceed actual expenses incurred by Advisor.
All offering costs, including selling commissions and dealer manager fees, are recorded as an offset to additional paid-in
capital, and all organization costs are recorded as an expense when the Company has an obligation to reimburse Advisor.
The Company terminated its Follow-On Offering on February 20, 2015. Total offering costs for the Follow-On Offering
were $14,125,202, comprised of $11,400,339 of offering costs incurred directly by the Company and $2,724,863 in offering
costs incurred by and reimbursable to Advisor. As of March 31, 2017, total offering costs for the DRIP Offering were $124,000.
The Company directly incurred $0 of offering costs for the DRIP Offering and $124,000 in offering costs that were reimbursed
to Advisor. As of March 31, 2017, the Company had $0 payable to Advisor for reimbursable offering costs related to the
Follow-On Offering and DRIP Offering. Offering costs related to the Follow-On Offering did not exceed 15.0% of the gross
offering proceeds from the sale of the Company’s shares of common stock in that offering. The Company has not reimbursed
Advisor any funds for organization costs for the Follow-On Offering.
Income Taxes
The Company has made an election to be taxed as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue Code
commencing with the taxable year ended December 31, 2011. Prior to qualifying for taxation as a REIT, the Company was
subject to normal federal and state corporation income taxes.
As a REIT, the Company generally will not be subject to federal corporate income tax to the extent it distributes its REIT
taxable income to its stockholders, so long as it distributes at least 90% of its REIT taxable income (which is computed
without regard to the dividends-paid deduction or net capital gain and which does not necessarily equal net income as
calculated in accordance with GAAP) and satisfy the other organizational and operational requirements for REIT
qualification. Even if the Company qualifies for taxation as a REIT, it may be subject to certain state and local taxes on its
income and property, and federal income and excise taxes on its undistributed income. The Company leases the hotels it
acquires to wholly-owned taxable REIT subsidiaries (“TRSs”) that are subject to federal, state and local income taxes.
The Company accounts for income taxes of its TRSs using the asset and liability method, under which deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. The Company records a valuation allowance
for net deferred tax assets that are not expected to be realized.
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The Company has reviewed tax positions under GAAP guidance that clarify the relevant criteria and approach for the
recognition and measurement of uncertain tax positions. The guidance prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement
attribute for the financial statement recognition of a tax position taken, or expected to be taken, in a tax return. A tax position
may only be recognized in the consolidated financial statements if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be
sustained upon examination. The Company had no material uncertain tax positions as of March 31, 2017.
The preparation of the Company’s various tax returns requires the use of estimates for federal and state income tax
purposes. These estimates may be subjected to review by the respective taxing authorities. A revision to an estimate may
result in an assessment of additional taxes, penalties and interest. At this time, a range in which the Company’s estimates may
change is not expected to be material. The Company will account for interest and penalties relating to uncertain tax positions
in the current period results of operations, if necessary. The Company has tax years 2012 through 2016 remaining subject to
examination by various federal and state tax jurisdictions.
Fair Value Measurement
Fair value measures are classified into a three-tiered fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring
fair value as follows:
Level 1:
Level 2:
Level 3:

Observable inputs, such as quoted prices in active markets.
Directly or indirectly observable inputs, other than quoted prices in active markets.
Unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data, which require a reporting entity to develop its
own assumptions.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are based on one or more of the following valuation techniques:
Market approach:
Cost approach:
Income approach:

Prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or
comparable assets or liabilities.
Amount required to replace the service capacity of an asset (replacement cost).
Techniques used to convert future income amounts to a single amount based on market
expectations (including present-value, option-pricing, and excess-earnings models).

The Company’s estimates of fair value were determined using available market information and appropriate valuation
methods. Considerable judgment is necessary to interpret market data and develop estimated fair value. The use of different
market assumptions or estimation methods may have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts. The Company
classifies assets and liabilities in the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement.
The Company elected not to use the fair value option in recording its financial instruments, which include cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable, notes payable, notes receivable from related parties, accounts payable and
accrued expenses. With the exception of the Company’s fixed-rate notes payable and notes receivable from related parties,
the carrying amounts of these financial instruments approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature or variable
interest rates. For fair value of the Company’s notes payable and notes receivable from related parties, see Note 5 (“Debt”)
and Note 4 (“Notes Receivable”), respectively.
Concentration of Risk
As of March 31, 2017, the Company had cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash deposited in certain financial
institutions in excess of federally insured levels. The Company diversifies its cash and cash equivalents with several banking
institutions in an attempt to minimize exposure to any one of these institutions. The Company regularly monitors the
financial stability of these financial institutions and believes that it is not exposed to any significant credit risk in cash and
cash equivalents or restricted cash.
The Company is also exposed to credit risk with respect to its notes receivable from related parties. The failure of the
borrowers on the notes receivable from related parties to make payments of interest and principal when due, or any other
event of default under the notes receivable from related parties, would have an adverse impact on the Company’s results of
operations.
The Company is exposed to geographic risk in that seven of its twelve hotel properties are located in one state, Texas.
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Valuation and Allocation of Hotel Properties — Acquisition
Upon acquisition, the purchase price of a hotel property is allocated to the tangible assets acquired, consisting of land,
buildings and furniture, fixtures and equipment, any assumed debt, identified intangible assets and asset retirement
obligations, if any, based on their fair values. Acquisition costs are charged to expense as incurred. Initial valuations are
subject to change during the measurement period, but the measurement period ends as soon as the information is available.
The measurement period shall not exceed one year from the acquisition date.
The tangible assets acquired consist of land, buildings, furniture fixtures and equipment. Land fair values are derived
from appraisals, and fair value of buildings are calculated as replacement cost less depreciation or estimates of the relative
fair value of these assets using discounted cash flow analyses or similar methods. The fair value of furniture, fixtures and
equipment is based on their fair value using replacement costs less depreciation. Any difference between the fair value of the
hotel property acquired and the purchase price of the hotel property is recorded as goodwill or a gain on acquisition of hotel
property.
The Company determines the fair value of any assumed debt by calculating the net present value of the scheduled
mortgage payments using interest rates for debt with similar terms and remaining maturities that the Company believes it
could obtain at the date of acquisition. Any difference between the fair value and stated value of the assumed debt is recorded
as a discount or premium and amortized over the remaining life of the loan as interest expense.
In allocating the purchase price of each of the Company’s properties, the Company makes assumptions and uses various
estimates, including, but not limited to, the estimated useful lives of the assets, the cost of replacing certain assets and
discount rates used to determine present values. Many of these estimates are obtained from independent third party
appraisals. However, the Company is responsible for the source and use of these estimates. These estimates are based on
judgments and subject to being imprecise; accordingly, if different estimates and assumptions were used, the valuation of the
various categories of the Company’s hotel properties or related intangibles could in turn result in a difference in the
depreciation or amortization expense recorded in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. These variances could be
material to the Company’s results of operations and financial condition.
Valuation and Allocation of Hotel Properties — Ownership
Investment in hotel properties is recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. Major improvements that extend the life
of an asset are capitalized and depreciated over a period equal to the shorter of the life of the improvement or the remaining
useful life of the asset. The cost of ordinary repairs and maintenance are charged to expense when incurred.
Depreciation expense is computed using the straight-line and accelerated methods based upon the following estimated
useful lives:

Buildings and improvements .............................................................................
Exterior improvements ......................................................................................
Furniture, fixtures and equipment ......................................................................

Estimated
Useful
Lives
(years)
39-40
10-20
5-10

The Company designates a hotel property as held for sale when the sale is probable within the next twelve months.
Generally, the Company considers a sale to be probable when a buyer completes its due diligence review, the Company has
an executed contract for sale and the Company has received a substantial non-refundable deposit.
Impairments
The Company monitors events and changes in circumstances indicating that the carrying amounts of the hotel properties
that it owns may not be recoverable. When such events or changes in circumstances are present, the Company assesses
potential impairment by comparing estimated future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated over the life of the
asset from operating activities and from its eventual disposition, to the carrying amount of the asset. In the event that the
carrying amount exceeds the estimated future undiscounted cash flows, the Company recognizes an impairment loss to adjust
the carrying amount of the asset to estimated fair value for assets held for use and fair value less costs to sell for assets held
for sale. There were no such impairment losses for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016.
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In evaluating the Company’s hotel properties for impairment, the Company makes several estimates and assumptions,
including, but not limited to, the projected date of disposition of the properties, the estimated future cash flows of the
properties during the Company’s ownership and the projected sales price of each of the properties. A change in these
estimates and assumptions could result in a change in the estimated undiscounted cash flows or fair value of the Company’s
hotel properties, which could in turn result in different conclusions regarding impairment and material changes to the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.
Revenue Recognition
Hotel revenues, including room, food, beverage and other ancillary revenues, are recognized as the related services are
delivered. Interest income is recognized when earned. Revenue is recorded net of any sales and other taxes collected from
customers. Amounts received prior to guest arrival are recorded as an advance from the customer and are recognized at the
time of occupancy.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents represent cash on hand or held in banks and short-term investments with an initial maturity of
three months or less at the date of purchase.
Restricted Cash
Restricted cash includes reserves for debt service, property taxes and insurance, as well as reserves for property
improvements and replacement of furniture, fixtures and equipment, as required by certain management or mortgage debt
agreement restrictions and provisions.
Accounts Receivable
The Company takes into consideration certain factors that require judgments to be made as to the collectability of
receivables. Collectability factors taken into consideration are the amounts outstanding, payment history and financial
strength of the customer, which taken as a whole determines the valuation. Ongoing credit evaluations are performed and an
allowance for potential credit losses is provided against the portion of accounts receivable that is estimated to be
uncollectible.
Impairment of Notes Receivable
The Company reviews the notes receivable for impairment in each reporting period pursuant to the applicable
authoritative accounting guidance. A loan is impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the
Company will be unable to collect all amounts recorded as assets on the consolidated balance sheets. The Company applies
normal loan review and underwriting procedures (as may be implemented or modified from time to time) in making that
judgment.
When a loan is impaired, the Company measures impairment based on the present value of expected cash flows
discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate against the value of the asset recorded on the consolidated balance sheets. The
Company may also measure impairment based on a loan’s observable market price or the fair value of collateral, if the loan is
collateral dependent. If a loan is deemed to be impaired, the Company records a valuation allowance through a charge to
earnings for any shortfall. The Company’s assessment of impairment is based on considerable judgment and estimates. The
Company did not record a valuation allowance during the three months ended March 31, 2017 or 2016.
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets
Prepaid expenses include prepaid property insurance and hotel operating expenses. Other assets include deferred income
tax assets.
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Deferred Franchise Costs
Deferred franchise costs are recorded at cost and amortized over the term of the franchise contract on a straight-line basis.
Accumulated amortization of deferred franchise costs was $162,211 and $145,119 as of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016,
respectively. Expected future amortization of deferred franchise costs is as follows:
Years Ending December 31,
2017 .........................................................................................................................................................
$
51,276
2018 .........................................................................................................................................................
68,368
2019 .........................................................................................................................................................
68,368
2020 .........................................................................................................................................................
68,368
2021 .........................................................................................................................................................
68,368
Thereafter ................................................................................................................................................
573,041
Total.........................................................................................................................................................
$ 897,789
Debt Issuance Costs
Debt issuance costs are presented as a direct deduction from the carrying value of the debt liability on the consolidated balance
sheets. Debt issuance costs are amortized as a component of interest expense over the term of the related debt using the straight-line
method, which approximates the interest method. Accumulated amortization of deferred costs was $1,437,992 and $1,260,945 as of
March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively. Expected future amortization of debt issuance costs, based on the Company’s
obligations as of March 31, 2017, is as follows:
Years Ending December 31,
2017 ........................................................................................................................................................................
$ 329,618
2018 ........................................................................................................................................................................
238,049
2019 ........................................................................................................................................................................
238,049
2020 ........................................................................................................................................................................
238,700
2021 ........................................................................................................................................................................
238,049
Thereafter ...............................................................................................................................................................
732,652
Total .......................................................................................................................................................................
$ 2,015,117
Earnings (Loss) per Share
Earnings (loss) per share (“EPS”) is calculated based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding during each
period. Basic and diluted EPS are the same for all periods presented. Non-vested shares of restricted stock, totaling 0 and 1,250
shares as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, held by the Company’s independent directors are included in the calculation of
basic EPS because such shares have been issued and participate in dividends.
Comprehensive Income
For the periods presented, there were no differences between reported net loss attributable to common stockholders and
comprehensive loss.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No.
2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers,” which requires an entity to recognize the amount of revenue to which it
expects to be entitled for the transfer of promised goods or services to customers. ASU No. 2014-09 will replace most existing
revenue recognition guidance in GAAP when it becomes effective. The standard permits the use of either the full retrospective or
modified retrospective adoption. In July 2015, the FASB voted to defer the effective date to January 1, 2018 with early adoption
beginning January 1, 2017. The Company has begun to evaluate each of its revenue streams under the new model. Based on
preliminary assessments, the Company does not expect the adoption of ASU No. 2014-09 to have a material effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial position or the Company’s consolidated results of operations.
In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-01, “Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Liabilities,”
which enhances the reporting requirements surrounding the measurement of financial instruments and requires equity securities to
be measured at fair value with changes in the fair value recognized through net income for the period. ASU No. 2016-01 is effective
for the Company’s fiscal year commencing on January 1, 2018. The Company does not anticipate that the adoption of ASU No.
2016-01 will have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or the Company’s consolidated results of
operations.
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In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, “Leases,” which changes lessee accounting to reflect the financial
liability and right-of-use assets that are inherent to leasing an asset on the balance sheet. ASU No. 2016-02 is effective for the
Company’s fiscal year commencing on January 1, 2019, but early adoption is permitted. The effect that the adoption of ASU
No. 2016-02 will have on the Company’s consolidated financial position or the Company’s consolidated results of operations
is not currently reasonably estimable.
In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15, “Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments,”
which addresses the Statement of Cash Flow classification and presentation of certain cash transactions. ASU No. 2016-15 is
effective for the Company’s fiscal year commencing on January 1, 2018. The effect of this amendment is to be applied
retrospectively where practical and early adoption is permitted. The Company expects to adopt ASU No. 2016-15 for the
Company’s fiscal year commencing on January 1, 2018. The Company does not anticipate that the adoption of ASU No.
2016-15 will have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or the Company’s consolidated results
of operations.
In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-18, “Classification of Restricted Cash,” which addresses the
Statement of Cash Flow classification and presentation of restricted cash transactions. ASU No. 2016-18 is effective for the
Company’s fiscal year commencing on January 1, 2018. The effect of this amendment is to be applied retrospectively and
early adoption is permitted. The Company expects to adopt ASU No. 2016-18 for the Company’s fiscal year commencing on
January 1, 2018. The Company does not anticipate that the adoption of ASU No. 2016-18 will have a material effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial position or the Company’s consolidated results of operations.
In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-01, “Clarifying the Definition of a Business,” with the objective of
adding guidance to assist entities with evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as an acquisition of assets or a
business. ASU No. 2017-01 is effective for the Company’s fiscal year commencing on January 1, 2018. The effect of this
guidance is to be applied prospectively and early adoption is permitted. The Company does not anticipate that the adoption of
ASU No. 2017-01 will have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or the Company’s
consolidated results of operations.
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3.

Investment in Hotel Properties

The following table sets forth summary information regarding the Company’s investment in hotel properties as of March
31, 2017:
Ownership
Purchase
Property Name
Date Acquired
Location
Interest
Price(1)
Woodlands Hotel
(Homewood Suites by Hilton) ...........................................................................................................................
November 8, 2012
The Woodlands, Texas
100% $ 12,000,000

Rooms
91

Mortgage Debt
Outstanding(2)
$

9,300,000

Germantown Hotel
Germantown,
(Hyatt Place) ......................................................................................................................................................
April 9, 2013
Tennessee
100%
11,300,000

127

7,288,222

Charleston Hotel
North Charleston,
(Hyatt Place) ......................................................................................................................................................
July 2, 2013
South Carolina
100%
11,800,000

113

7,385,692

Austin Hotel
(Hampton Inn) ...................................................................................................................................................
December 30, 2013
Austin, Texas
100%
15,350,000

123

10,999,828

Grapevine Hotel
(Residence Inn) ..................................................................................................................................................
March 31, 2014
Grapevine, Texas
100%
20,500,000

133

12,707,426

Lyndhurst Hotel
(Marriott Courtyard) ..........................................................................................................................................
September 30, 2014 Lyndhurst, New Jersey
(3)
33,322,000

227

30,683,013

Austin Arboretum Hotel
(Hilton Garden Inn) ...........................................................................................................................................
November 20, 2014
Austin, Texas
100%
29,250,000

138

18,925,101

Great Valley Hotel
(Hampton Inn) ...................................................................................................................................................
March 27, 2015
Frazer, Pennsylvania
100%
11,000,000

125

8,200,000

Nashville Hotel
(Embassy Suites) ...............................................................................................................................................
June 16, 2015
Nashville, Tennessee
100%
66,300,000

208

43,000,000

Homewood Suites Austin
Hotel (Homewood Suites) ..................................................................................................................................
August 3, 2015
Austin, Texas
100%
14,250,000

96

11,000,000

Fort Worth Hotel
(TownPlace Suites) ...........................................................................................................................................
December 18, 2015
Fort Worth, Texas
(4)
7,301,887

95

7,003,047

Houston Hotel
(Hampton Inn) ..................................................................................................................................................
April 21, 2016
Houston, Texas
100%
8,000,000

119

4,681,782

$ 240,373,887
Totals ................................................................................................................................................................

1,595

(1)
(2)
(3)

$

171,174,111

Excludes closing costs.
As of March 31, 2017.
The Lyndhurst Hotel is owned by MN Lyndhurst Venture, LLC (the “Lyndhurst Joint Venture”). The OP contributed $100 to the Lyndhurst Joint
Venture in exchange for 100% of the Class B membership interests of the Lyndhurst Joint Venture (the “Lyndhurst Class B Interests”). Pursuant to the
operating agreement of the Lyndhurst Joint Venture, the OP also agreed to pay up to $5.37 million in costs and fees and capital reserve requirements
associated with the transfer of the Lyndhurst Hotel to the Lyndhurst Joint Venture, all of which amounts are deemed to be additional capital
contributions by the OP to the Lyndhurst Joint Venture in exchange for additional Lyndhurst Class B Interests. The prior tenant-in-common owners of
the Lyndhurst Hotel (the “Lyndhurst TIC Owners”) contributed their tenant-in-common ownership interests in the Lyndhurst Hotel (valued at $1,000
in the aggregate) to the Lyndhurst Joint Venture in exchange for non-voting Class A membership interests of the Lyndhurst Joint Venture (the
“Lyndhurst Class A Interests”). The OP serves as the sole manager of the Lyndhurst Joint Venture and manages the business and affairs of the
Lyndhurst Joint Venture. Cash available for distribution to the members of the Lyndhurst Joint Venture will be distributed as follows: (1) first, 100% to
the OP until it has received cash distributions equal to a 12% annual, cumulative, non-compounded return on its capital contributions to the Lyndhurst
Joint Venture and a return of 100% of its unreturned capital contributions to the Lyndhurst Joint Venture, (2) next, 100% to the holders of the
Lyndhurst Class A Interests until they have received a return of 100% of their capital contributions to the Lyndhurst Joint Venture (valued at $1,000 in
the aggregate), and (3) next, 60% to the OP and 40% to the holders of the Lyndhurst Class A Interests.
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(4)

The Fort Worth Hotel is owned by MN Fort Worth Venture, LLC (the “Fort Worth Joint Venture”). The OP contributed $100 to the Fort Worth Joint
Venture in exchange for 100% of the Class B membership interests of the Fort Worth Joint Venture (the “Fort Worth Class B Interests”). Pursuant to
the operating agreement of the Fort Worth Joint Venture, the OP also agreed to pay up to $3.146 million in costs and fees and capital reserve
requirements associated with the transfer of the Fort Worth Hotel to the Fort Worth Joint Venture, all of which amounts are deemed to be additional
capital contributions by the OP to the Fort Worth Joint Venture in exchange for additional Fort Worth Class B Interests. The prior tenant-in-common
owners of the Fort Worth Hotel (the “Fort Worth TIC Owners”) contributed their tenant-in-common ownership interests in the Fort Worth Hotel
(valued at $1,000 in the aggregate) to the Fort Worth Joint Venture in exchange for non-voting Class A membership interests of the Fort Worth Joint
Venture (the “Fort Worth Class A Interests”). The OP serves as the sole manager of the Fort Worth Joint Venture and manages the business and affairs
of the Fort Worth Joint Venture. Cash available for distribution to the members of the Fort Worth Joint Venture will be distributed as follows: (1) first,
100% to the OP until it has received cash distributions equal to a 12% annual, cumulative, non-compounded return on its capital contributions to the
Fort Worth Joint Venture and a return of 100% of its unreturned capital contributions to the Fort Worth Joint Venture, (2) next, 100% to the holders of
the Fort Worth Class A Interests until they have received a return of 100% of their capital contributions to the Fort Worth Joint Venture (valued at
$1,000 in the aggregate), and (3) next, 50% to the OP and 50% to the holders of the Fort Worth Class A Interests.

Investment in hotel properties consisted of the following at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016:
March 31,
December 31,
2017
2016
Land ......................................................................................................................................
$
27,923,000 $
27,923,000
Buildings and improvements ................................................................................................
208,767,657
208,287,853
Furniture, fixtures and equipment .........................................................................................
28,622,853
27,731,547
Total cost ...........................................................................................................................
265,313,510
263,942,400
Accumulated depreciation ....................................................................................................
(28,430,482)
(25,776,514)
Investment in hotel properties, net ....................................................................................
$
236,883,028 $ 238,165,886
On April 21, 2016, Moody Katy EC-Houston Holding, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of the OP (“Moody Katy ECHouston Holding”), acquired fee simple title to the Houston Hotel from the current tenant-in-common owners of the Houston
Hotel, for an aggregate purchase price of $8,000,000, excluding acquisition costs. The Company financed the acquisition of
the Houston Hotel with proceeds from its public offering and $4,800,000 of indebtedness secured by the Houston Hotel.
The following unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and
2016 is presented as if the Company had acquired the Houston Hotel on January 1, 2016. This information is not necessarily
indicative of what the actual results of operations would have been had the Company completed the acquisition of the
Houston Hotel on January 1, 2016, nor does it purport to represent the Company’s future operations:

Revenue ................................................................................................................................ $
Net loss .................................................................................................................................
Net loss attributable to common stockholders ......................................................................
Net loss per common share - basic and diluted ..................................................................... $
4.

Three Months Ended
March 31,
2017
2016
(unaudited)
14,846,148 $ 14,775,842
(953,551)
(1,240,259)
(904,158)
(1,190,710)
(0.07) $
(0.09)

Notes Receivable

As of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the amounts of notes receivable from related parties were both
$12,500,000 and $13,500,000, respectively.
Hyatt Place Note
On June 3, 2011 (the “Closing Date”), and effective as of May 5, 2011 (the “Effective Date”), the Company acquired a
74.5% joint venture interest in a mortgage note secured by a hotel property in Grapevine, Texas (the “Hyatt Place Note”)
pursuant to the transaction described below. The Hyatt Place Note was issued by Moody National HP Grapevine Trust, a
Delaware statutory trust (the “Trust”), in favor of Patriot Bank, a Texas banking association (“Patriot Bank”), and was
secured by a lien on the underlying hotel property. As of the Closing Date, the Hyatt Place Note had an outstanding principal
balance of $12,759,199.
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The entire unpaid principal balance of the Hyatt Place Note and all accrued and unpaid interest thereon was due and
payable in full on February 1, 2018 (the “Maturity Date”). The Hyatt Place Note accrued interest at a fixed rate of 5.15% per
annum from the Closing Date through August 21, 2012 (the “First Change Date”). For the period from the First Change Date
through August 21, 2015 (the “Second Change Date”), the Hyatt Place Note accrued interest at 5.15%, which is a fixed rate
equal to (a) the variable interest rate per annum published in The Wall Street Journal as the “Prime Rate” of 3.25% (the
“Prime Rate”) in effect as of the First Change Date, plus (b) 1.90%. For the period from the Second Change Date through the
Maturity Date, the Hyatt Place Note accrued interest at 5.15%, which is a fixed rate equal to (a) the Prime Rate in effect as of
the Second Change Date, plus (b) 1.90%, provided that in no event will the interest rate exceed the maximum interest rate
permitted by applicable law.
On June 10, 2016, the Hyatt Place Note and all accrued interest thereon was paid in full.
Notes Receivable from Related Parties
On August 21, 2015, the Company originated an unsecured loan in the aggregate principal amount of $9,000,000 (the
“Related Party Note”) to Moody National DST Sponsor, LLC, a Texas limited liability company and an affiliate of Sponsor
(“DST Sponsor”). Proceeds from the Related Party Note were used by DST Sponsor solely to acquire a commercial real
property located in Katy, Texas (the “Subject Property”).
The entire unpaid principal balance of the Related Party Note and all accrued and unpaid interest thereon and all other
amounts due under the Related Party Note were due and payable in full on the earlier of (1) August 21, 2016 or (2) ten days
following the sale of 100% of the equity ownership interests that are to be syndicated in the Subject Property. Interest on the
outstanding principal balance of the Related Party Note accrues at a fixed per annum rate equal to 12%, provided that in no
event will the interest rate exceed the maximum rate permitted by applicable law. DST Sponsor was required to pay the
Company an origination fee in the amount of $90,000 and an exit fee in the amount of $90,000 upon the maturity date of the
Related Party Note, including any earlier prepayment date or accelerated maturity date of the Related Party Note. The
Related Party Note may be prepaid in whole or part by DST Sponsor without penalty at any time upon prior written notice to
the Company.
On August 15, 2016, the maturity date of the Related Party note was extended from August 21, 2016 to August 21, 2017
and the origination fee in the amount of $90,000 and an extension fee in the amount of $45,000 were paid to the Company by
DST Sponsor.
On April 29, 2016, the Company originated an unsecured loan in the aggregate principal amount of $4,500,000 (the
“Related Party Mezzanine Note”) to Moody National, an affiliate of Sponsor. Proceeds from the Related Party Mezzanine
Note were used by Moody National solely to acquire a multifamily real property located in Houston, Texas.
The entire unpaid principal balance of the Related Party Mezzanine Note and all accrued and unpaid interest thereon and
all other amounts due under the Related Party Mezzanine Note are due and payable in full on the earlier of (1) April 30, 2018,
or (2) upon 90 days’ written notice of acceleration of the maturity date by the Company to Moody National. Interest on the
outstanding principal balance of the Related Party Mezzanine Note accrues at a fixed per annum rate equal to 10%, provided
that in no event will the interest rate exceed the maximum rate permitted by applicable law. Moody National will pay the
Company an origination fee in the amount of $45,000 and an exit fee in the amount of $45,000 upon the maturity date of the
Related Party Mezzanine Note, including any earlier prepayment date or accelerated maturity date. The Related Party
Mezzanine Note may be prepaid in whole or part by Moody National without penalty at any time upon prior written notice to
the Company.
Interest income from notes receivable from related parties was $410,600 and $290,500 for the three months ended March
31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Interest receivable on notes receivable from related parties was $774,500 and $1,452,300 as
of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively, and is included in due from related parties on the consolidated
balance sheets.
The aggregate estimated fair values of the notes receivable from related parties as of March 31, 2017 and December 31,
2016 were $12,500,000 and $13,500,000, respectively.
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5.

Debt

The Company’s aggregate borrowings are reviewed by the Company’s board of directors at least quarterly. Under the
Company’s Second Articles of Amendment and Restatement (as amended, the “Charter”), the Company is prohibited from
borrowing in excess of 300% of the value of the Company’s net assets. “Net assets” for purposes of this calculation is defined
to be the Company’s total assets (other than intangibles), valued at cost prior to deducting depreciation, reserves for bad debts
and other non-cash reserves, less total liabilities. However, the Company may temporarily borrow in excess of these amounts
if such excess is approved by a majority of the Company’s independent directors and disclosed to stockholders in the
Company’s next quarterly report along with an explanation for such excess. As of March 31, 2017, the Company’s debt
levels did not exceed 300% of the value of the Company’s net assets, as defined above.
As of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the Company’s notes payable consisted of the following:
Principal as of
Principal as of
March 31,
December 31,
2017
2016
Woodlands Hotel Loan ..........................................................................................................................................
$
9,300,000 $
9,300,000
Germantown Hotel Loan ........................................................................................................................................
7,288,222
7,325,393
Charleston Hotel Loan ...........................................................................................................................................
7,385,692
7,417,921
Austin Hotel Loan ..................................................................................................................................................
10,999,828
11,044,471
Grapevine Hotel Loan ............................................................................................................................................
12,707,426
12,759,654
Lyndhurst Hotel Loan ............................................................................................................................................
30,683,013
30,839,847
Austin Arboretum Hotel Loan ................................................................................................................................
18,925,101
19,000,000
Great Valley Hotel Loan ........................................................................................................................................
8,200,000
8,200,000
Nashville Hotel Loan .............................................................................................................................................
43,000,000
43,000,000
Homewood Suites Austin Loan ..............................................................................................................................
11,000,000
11,000,000
Fort Worth Loan ....................................................................................................................................................
7,003,047
7,038,313
Houston Loan .........................................................................................................................................................
4,681,782
4,711,651
Total notes payable ................................................................................................................................................
171,174,111
171,637,250
Less unamortized debt issuance costs ....................................................................................................................
(2,015,117)
(2,192,164)
Total notes payable, net of debt issuance costs ..................................................................................................
$
169,158,994 $
169,445,086

Interest
Rate at
March 31,
2017
4.690%
4.300%
5.193%
5.426%
5.250%
5.916%
4.530%
4.700%
4.2123%
4.650%
6.136%
5.750%

Maturity
Date
April 11, 2025
May 6, 2023
August 1, 2023
January 6, 2024
April 6, 2024
September 6, 2017
December 11, 2024
April 11, 2025
July 11, 2025
August 11, 2025
June 6, 2017
July 28, 2017

The notes payable are secured by the respective hotel properties and are payable in monthly installments of principal and
interest.
Maturities of notes payable as of March 31, 2017 are as follows:
Year ending December 31,
2017 ....................................................................................................................................................
$ 43,580,141
2018 ....................................................................................................................................................
2,145,768
2019 ....................................................................................................................................................
2,248,650
2020 ....................................................................................................................................................
2,340,140
2021 ....................................................................................................................................................
2,468,800
Thereafter............................................................................................................................................
118,390,612
Total ....................................................................................................................................................
$ 171,174,111
Each of the Lyndhurst Hotel Loan, the Fort Worth Loan, and the Houston Loan mature in 2017. If the Mergers are
consummated, these loans may be extended or re-financed with financing obtained by Moody II. In the event the Mergers are
not consummated, the Company intends to extend the Houston Loan beyond its extended maturity date of July 28, 2017 and
refinance the Lyndhurst Hotel Loan and Fort Worth Loan with proceeds from new loans. The Company may not be able to
extend or refinance the foregoing loans at all, or be able to extend or refinance such loans on favorable terms.
The estimated fair value of the Company’s notes payable as of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 was
$170,000,000 and $172,000,000, respectively. The fair value of notes payable was estimated based on discounted cash flow
analyses using Level 2 inputs for the current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements as of
the respective reporting dates. The discounted cash flow method of assessing fair value results in a general approximation of
value, and such value may never actually be realized.
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6.

Equity
Capitalization

Under the Charter, the Company has the authority to issue 400,000,000 shares of common stock and 50,000,000 shares
of preferred stock. All shares of common and preferred stock have a par value of $0.01 per share. As of March 31, 2017, the
Company had issued 13,230,436 shares of common stock in the Company’s public offerings, net of shares redeemed,
including 928,072 shares issued pursuant to the DRIP. As of March 31, 2017, there were a total of 13,303,908 shares of the
Company’s common stock issued and outstanding, including 22,222 shares sold to Sponsor and 51,250 shares of restricted
stock granted to the Company’s independent directors as discussed in Note 8 (“Incentive Award Plan”).
The Company’s board of directors is authorized to amend the Charter, without the approval of the stockholders, to
increase the aggregate number of authorized shares of capital stock or the number of shares of any class or series that the
Company has authority to issue.
Distributions
The Company’s board of directors has authorized a distribution to its stockholders that (1) accrues daily to the
Company’s stockholders of record as of the close of business on each day; (2) is payable in cumulative amounts on or before
the 15th day of each calendar month and (3) is calculated at a rate of $0.002192 per share of the Company’s common stock
per day, which, if paid each day over a 365-day period, is equivalent to an 8.0% annualized distribution rate based on a
purchase price of $10.00 per share of common stock.
The following table summarizes distributions paid in cash and pursuant to the DRIP for the three months ended March
31, 2017 and 2016:
Distribution Paid
Cash
Pursuant to
Period
Distribution
DRIP(1)
First Quarter 2017 .................................................................................................................
$
2,622,577 $
—
First Quarter 2016 .................................................................................................................
$
1,643,571 $
965,287

Total Amount of
Distribution
$
2,622,577
$
2,608,858

(1) Amount of distributions paid in shares of common stock pursuant to the DRIP. The Company’s DRIP was suspended in
October 2016.
Noncontrolling Interest in Operating Partnership
Noncontrolling interest in the OP at March 31, 2017 was $6,189,598, which represented ownership interests in the OP
other than those of the Company, and is reported in equity in the consolidated balance sheets. Loss from the OP attributable
to these noncontrolling interests was $49,393 and $69,206 for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively.
Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Joint Ventures
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated joint ventures at March 31, 2017 was $0, which represented ownership interests
in the Lyndhurst Joint Venture and the Fort Worth Joint Venture, and is reported in equity in the consolidated balance sheets.
Income from consolidated joint venture attributable to these noncontrolling interests was $0 and $19,657 for the three months
ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
7.

Related Party Arrangements

Advisor and certain affiliates of Advisor received fees and compensation in connection with the Company’s public
offerings and have received and will continue to receive fees and compensation in connection with the acquisition,
management and sale of the Company’s real estate investments.
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Selling Commissions and Dealer Manager Fees
Moody Securities received a selling commission of up to 6.5% of gross offering proceeds raised in those offerings, all or
a portion of which could be re-allowed to participating broker-dealers. In addition, the Company paid Moody Securities a
dealer manager fee of up to 3.5% of gross offering proceeds raised in those offerings, a portion of which could be re-allowed
to participating broker-dealers. No selling commissions or dealer manager fee are paid for sales pursuant to the DRIP. As of
March 31, 2017, the Company had paid Moody Securities $746,368 and $8,646,755 in selling commissions related to the
Initial Public Offering and Follow-On Offering, respectively, and $190,626 and $2,455,643 in dealer manager fees related to
the Initial Public Offering and Follow-On Offering, respectively, which has been recorded as a reduction to additional paid-in
capital in the consolidated balance sheets.
Organization and Offering Costs
Advisor and its affiliates will be reimbursed up to 15.0% of offering proceeds for reimbursement of organization and
offering expenses incurred in each of the Company’s public offerings (including selling commissions and the dealer manager
fee payable to Moody Securities), not to exceed actual expenses incurred. Advisor will be responsible for the payment of
organization and offering expenses, other than selling commissions and dealer manager fees, to the extent they exceed 15.0%
of gross offering proceeds, without recourse against or reimbursement by the Company. As of March 31, 2017, Advisor and
its affiliates had incurred organization and offering expenses of approximately $3,214,000 related to the Initial Public
Offering and $2,849,000 related to the Follow-On Offering and the DRIP Offering.
As of March 31, 2017, total offering costs for the Follow-On Offering were $14,125,202. The Company directly incurred
$11,400,339 of offering costs for the Follow-On Offering and $2,724,863 in offering costs reimbursable to Advisor for the
Follow-On Offering. As of December 31, 2016, total offering costs for the DRIP Offering were $124,000. The Company
directly incurred $0 of offering costs for the DRIP Offering and $124,000 in offering costs were reimbursed to Advisor for
the DRIP Offering. As of December 31, 2016, the Company had $0 payable to Advisor for offering costs related to the
Follow-On Offering and DRIP Offerings. As of December 31, 2016, offering costs related to the Follow-On Offering did not
exceed 15.0% of the gross offering proceeds from the sale of the Company’s shares of common stock in the Follow-On
Offering. The Company has not reimbursed Advisor any funds for organization costs for the Follow-On Offering.
Advisory Fees and Expense Reimbursement
Acquisition Fee
Advisor, or its affiliates, receives an acquisition fee equal to 1.5% of (1) the cost of investments the Company acquires or
(2) the Company’s allocable cost of investments acquired in a joint venture. With respect to investments in and originations
of loans, Advisor will receive an origination fee in lieu of an acquisition fee. The origination fee will equal 1.5% of the
amount funded by the Company to invest in or originate such loan. For the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, the
Company did not pay Advisor any acquisition fees. As of March 31, 2017, the Company had not paid any origination fees to
Advisor.
Debt Financing Fee
Advisor will receive a debt financing fee of 1.0% of the amount available under any loan or line of credit made available
to the Company. It is anticipated that Advisor will pay some or all of these fees to third parties with whom it subcontracts to
coordinate financing for the Company. For the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company did not pay any
debt financing fees to Advisor.
Asset Management Fee
The Company pays Advisor a monthly asset management fee of one-twelfth of 1.0% of the aggregate cost (before noncash reserves and depreciation) of all real estate investments held by the Company at month-end. For the three months ended
March 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company incurred asset management fees payable to Advisor of $660,000 and $647,589,
respectively, which are recorded in corporate general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations.
Disposition Fee
If Advisor provides a substantial amount of services in connection with the sale of a property or other investment,
Advisor or its affiliates also will be paid a disposition fee equal to 3.0% of the contract sales price of each property or other
investment sold, provided that total real estate commissions, including the disposition fee, do not exceed 6.0% of the contract
sales price. The Company did not pay Advisor any disposition fees for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016.
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Operating Expense Reimbursement
The Company will reimburse Advisor for all operating expenses paid or incurred by Advisor in connection with the
services provided to the Company, subject to the limitation that the Company will not reimburse Advisor for any amount by
which its operating expenses (including the asset management fee) at the end of the four preceding fiscal quarters exceeds the
greater of: (1) 2% of the Company’s average invested assets, or (2) 25% of the Company’s net income determined without
reduction for any additions to reserves for depreciation, bad debts or other similar non-cash reserves and excluding any gain
from the sale of the Company’s assets for that period (the “2%/25% Limitation”). Notwithstanding the above, the Company
may reimburse Advisor for expenses in excess of this limitation if a majority of the independent directors determines that
such excess expenses are justified based on unusual and non-recurring factors. For the four fiscal quarters ended March 31,
2017, total operating expenses of the Company were $3,958,194, which included $2,799,407 in operating expenses incurred
directly by the Company and $1,158,787 incurred by Advisor on behalf of the Company. Of the $3,958,194 in total operating
expenses incurred during the four fiscal quarters ended March 31, 2017, $0 exceeded the 2%/25% Limitation. The Company
reimbursed Advisor approximately $1,158,000 in operating expenses during the four fiscal quarters ended March 31, 2017.
Additionally, Advisor has incurred $5,783,132 in operating expenses on the Company’s behalf prior to the four fiscal
quarters ended March 31, 2017. Subject to a future determination by the Company’s board of directors, this amount is not
reimbursable to Advisor nor an obligation of the Company.
Advisor has waived all operating expenses reimbursable to Advisor for each of the 12 prior fiscal quarters ended March
31, 2014 (the “Waiver Period”) to the extent such expenses had not been previously reimbursed to Advisor. Advisor further
agreed that all expenses incurred directly by the Company during the Waiver Period will be paid by Advisor on behalf of the
Company. Total reimbursable expenses so waived or assumed by Advisor were $1,967,721 as of March 31, 2017.
Property Management Fees
The Company has engaged Moody National Hospitality Management, LLC, an affiliate of the Sponsor (the “Property
Manager”), as its property manager. The Company pays Property Manager a market-based property management fee in
connection with the operation and management of its properties. For the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, the
Company paid the Property Manager property management fees of $431,601 and $408,448, respectively, and accounting fees
of $90,000 and $82,500, respectively, pursuant to the terms of hotel management agreements. These property management
fees are included in hotel operating expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
Notes Receivable from Related Parties
For a description of the Company’s notes receivable from related parties, see Note 4 (“Notes Receivable”).
Due from Related Parties
On September 22, 2015, the Company assigned and transferred its Purchase Agreement, as amended, between the
Company and a third-party seller for the property commonly referred to as the Hampton Inn Boston Logan Airport to Moody
National for the sum of $1,000,000. The $1,000,000 receivable from Moody National is recorded in due from related parties
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
Note Joint Venture
As discussed in Note 4 (“Notes Receivable”), during the three months ended March 31, 2016, the OP owned a 74.5%
membership interest in the Note Joint Venture, Moody National Mortgage owned a 14% membership interest in the Note
Joint Venture and the Trust Members owned the remaining 11.5% membership interests in the Note Joint Venture. Pursuant
to the terms of the Note Joint Venture Agreement, Moody National Mortgage received approximately 14% of all distributions
of cash from operations of the Note Joint Venture and the OP and the other Members received the remaining approximately
86% of distributions of cash from operations of the Note Joint Venture in proportion to their respective membership interests
in the Note Joint Venture.
On June 10, 2016, the Hyatt Place Note receivable and all accrued interest thereon was paid in full.
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Houston Hotel
On April 21, 2016, the OP acquired fee simple title to the Houston Hotel from the then-current tenant-in-common
owners of the Houston Hotel (the “Houston TIC Owners”), for an aggregate purchase price, exclusive of closing costs, of
$8,000,000. The Houston TIC Owners acquired their tenant-in-common interests in the Houston Hotel in a tenant-in-common
program sponsored by an affiliate of the Company.
Pending Merger with Moody II
On November 16, 2016, the Company entered into the Merger Agreement. Concurrently with the entry into the Merger
Agreement, the Company, the OP, Advisor, Moody II, Moody National and OP Holdings entered into the Termination
Agreement. See Note 1 (“Organization—Pending Merger with Moody National REIT II, Inc.”).
8.

Incentive Award Plan

The Company has adopted an incentive plan (the “Incentive Award Plan”) that provides for the grant of equity awards to
the employees, directors and consultants of the Company and its affiliates. The Incentive Award Plan authorizes the grant of
non-qualified and incentive stock options, restricted stock awards, restricted stock units, stock appreciation rights, dividend
equivalents and other stock-based awards or cash-based awards. Shares of common stock will be authorized and reserved for
issuance under the Incentive Award Plan. The Company has also adopted an independent directors compensation plan (the
“Independent Directors Compensation Plan”) pursuant to which each of the Company’s then-current independent directors
was entitled to receive 5,000 shares of restricted common stock when the Company raised the minimum offering amount of
$2,000,000 in its initial public offering. Each new independent director that subsequently joins the Company’s board of
directors will receive 5,000 shares of restricted stock on the date he or she joins the Company’s board of directors. In
addition, on the date of each of the first four annual meetings of the Company’s stockholders at which an independent
director is re-elected to the Company’s board of directors, he or she will receive 2,500 restricted shares of common stock.
Subject to certain conditions, the non-vested shares of restricted stock granted pursuant to the Independent Directors
Compensation Plan will vest and become non-forfeitable in four equal quarterly installments beginning on the first day of the
first quarter following the date of grant; provided, however, that the restricted stock will become fully vested on the earlier to
occur of (1) the termination of the independent director’s service as a director due to his or her death or disability, or (2) a
change in control of the Company. As of March 31, 2017, there were 1,948,750 common shares remaining available for
future issuance under the Incentive Award Plan and the Independent Directors Compensation Plan.
No shares of restricted stock were granted pursuant to the Independent Directors Compensation Plan during the three
months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016. As of March 31, 2017, a total of 51,250 shares of restricted common stock have
been issued by the Company to the Company’s independent directors pursuant to the Independent Directors Compensation
Plan.
The weighted average grant date fair value of the shares of restricted stock issued by the Company pursuant to the
Independent Directors Compensation Plan was $10.00 per share based on observable market transactions occurring near the
dates of the grants. The Company records compensation expense related to such shares of restricted stock ratably from the
grant date to the date the shares become fully vested based on the fair market value of such shares at the date they were
granted. The Company recorded compensation expense related to such shares of restricted stock based on the fair market
value of such shares of $0 and $7,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. As of March 31,
2017, all shares of restricted common stock granted pursuant to the Independent Directors Compensation Plan had vested and
there was no remaining unrecognized compensation expense.
The following is a summary of activity under the Independent Directors Compensation Plan for the three months ended
March 31, 2017 and year ended December 31, 2016:

Balance of non-vested shares as of December 31, 2015 ......................................
Shares vested ....................................................................................................
Balance of non-vested shares as of December 31, 2016 ......................................
Shares vested ....................................................................................................
Balance of non-vested shares as of March 31, 2017 ............................................
22

Weighted Average
Number of
Grant Date Fair
Shares
Value
1,875 $
10.00
(1,875)
10.00
0
10.00
0
10.00
0 $
10.00

Moody National REIT I, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2017
(unaudited)
9.

Subordinated Participation Interest

Pursuant to the limited partnership agreement of the OP, the holders of the Special Units will be entitled to distributions
from the OP in an amount equal to 15.0% of net sales proceeds received by the OP on dispositions of its assets and
dispositions of real properties by joint ventures or partnerships in which the OP owns a partnership interest, after the other
holders of common units, including the Company, have received in the aggregate cumulative distributions from operating
income, sales proceeds or other sources equal to their capital contributions plus an 8.0% cumulative non-compounded annual
pre-tax return thereon. The Special Units will be redeemed for the above amount upon the earliest of: (1) the occurrence of
certain events that result in the termination or non-renewal of the Advisory Agreement or (2) a listing of the Company’s
common stock on a national securities exchange. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Mergers are completed, all of the
Special Units will be cancelled and retired and cease to exist, and the only payment made in respect of the Special Units will
be the Promote Payment, not to exceed $613,751.
10. Commitments and Contingencies
Restricted Cash
Under certain management and debt agreements existing at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the Company
escrows payments required for insurance, real estate taxes, capital improvements, replacement of hotel furniture and fixtures,
and debt service.
The composition of the Company’s restricted cash as of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 was as follows:

Property improvement plan ................................................................................. $
Real estate taxes ...................................................................................................
Insurance ..............................................................................................................
Hotel furniture and fixtures ..................................................................................
Seasonality ...........................................................................................................
Expense deposit ...................................................................................................
Total restricted cash ......................................................................................... $

March 31,
2017
152,752
1,394,698
186,219
2,353,185
158,221
255,500
4,500,575

December 31,
2016
$
667,997
1,592,615
392,910
2,485,725
290,064
255,500
$
5,684,811

Franchise Agreements
As of March 31, 2017, all of the Company’s hotel properties operated under franchise agreements with initial terms
ranging from 10 to 20 years. Franchise agreements allow the properties to operate under their respective brands. Pursuant to
the franchise agreements, the Company pays a royalty fee, generally between 3.0% and 6.0% of room revenue, plus
additional fees for marketing, central reservation systems and other franchisor costs that amount to between 1.5% and 4.3%
of room revenue. For the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company incurred franchise fee expense of
approximately $1,203,000 and $1,108,000, respectively, which is included in hotel operating expenses in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations.
Merger-Related Contingencies
The consummation of the Mergers is subject to certain customary closing conditions, including, among others, the
approval of the Mergers by the Company’s stockholders. The Merger Agreement may be terminated under certain
circumstances by both the Company and Moody II. If such termination occurs under certain circumstances, then the
Company would be obligated to pay Moody II a termination fee of $2,000,000, plus an expense reimbursement fee of up to
$500,000. The Merger Agreement also provides that one party may be required to reimburse the other party’s expenses, up to
$500,000, if the Merger Agreement is terminated under certain circumstances. Merger-related expenses are expensed as
incurred and are included in acquisition expenses in the consolidated statements of operations.
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11. Income Taxes
The Company has formed TRSs that are C-corporations for federal income tax purposes and use the consolidated asset
and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Tax return positions are recognized in the consolidated financial
statements when they are “more-likely-than-not” to be sustained upon examination by the taxing authority. Deferred income
tax assets and liabilities result from temporary differences. Temporary differences are differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their reported amounts in the consolidated financial statements that will result in taxable or
deductible amounts in future periods. A valuation allowance may be placed on deferred income tax assets, if it is determined
that it is more likely than not that a deferred tax asset may not be realized.
No provision for income taxes has been made for the Company (other than for each TRS) for the three months ended
March 31, 2017 and 2016 as it made an election to be taxed as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal
Revenue Code commencing with the taxable year ended December 31, 2011. Prior to January 1, 2011, the Company was
subject to federal and state income taxes as it had not elected to be taxed as a REIT.
The TRSs had deferred tax assets of $3,051,000 and $2,605,000 as of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016,
respectively, resulting from net operating loss carry-forwards. As of March 31, 2017, the TRSs had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $6,475,000 expiring in 2033, 2034, 2035 and 2036.
As of March 31, 2017, the Company had operating loss carry-forwards of $355,800 expiring in 2030, 2031 and 2033.
The income tax expense (benefit) for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 consisted of the following:
Three months ended
March 31,
2017
2016
Current expense ..........................................................................................................................
$
44,297 $
50,000
Deferred benefit .......................................................................................................................... (446,000)
(307,000)
Total income tax expense (benefit) ........................................................................................
$
(401,703) $
(257,000)
Federal ........................................................................................................................................
$
State ............................................................................................................................................
Total income tax expense (benefit) ........................................................................................
$

(405,000) $
3,297
(401,703) $

(244,000)
(13,000)
(257,000)

12. Subsequent Events
Distributions Declared
On March 31, 2017, the Company declared a distribution in the aggregate amount of $903,958 which was paid in cash
on April 15, 2017. On April 30, 2017, the Company declared a distribution in the aggregate amount of $874,706, which is
scheduled to be paid in cash on May 15, 2017.
Houston Loan
On April 28, 2017, the Houston Loan’s maturity date was extended to July 28, 2017. All other terms and conditions of
the Houston Loan remained unchanged.
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ITEM 2.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS.

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the accompanying consolidated financial statements
of Moody National REIT I, Inc. and the notes thereto. As used herein, the terms “we,” “our,” “us” and “our company” refer to
Moody National REIT I, Inc. and, as required by context, Moody National Operating Partnership I, LP, a Delaware limited
partnership, which we refer to as our “operating partnership,” and to their respective subsidiaries. References to “shares” and “our
common stock” refer to the shares of our common stock.
Forward-Looking Statements
Certain statements included in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q, or this Quarterly Report, that are not historical facts
(including any statements concerning investment objectives, other plans and objectives of management for future operations or
economic performance, or assumptions or forecasts related thereto) are forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section
27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the
Exchange Act. These statements are only predictions. We caution that forward-looking statements are not guarantees. Actual events
or our investments and results of operations could differ materially from those expressed or implied in any forward-looking
statements. Forward-looking statements are typically identified by the use of terms such as “may,” “should,” “expect,” “could,”
“intend,” “plan,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “believe,” “continue,” “predict,” “potential” or the negative of such terms and other
comparable terms.
The forward-looking statements included herein are based upon our current expectations, plans, estimates, assumptions and
beliefs all of which involve numerous risks and uncertainties. Assumptions relating to the foregoing involve judgments with respect
to, among other things, future economic, competitive and market conditions and future business decisions, all of which are difficult
or impossible to predict accurately and many of which are beyond our control. Although we believe that the expectations reflected
in such forward-looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, our actual results and performance could differ materially
from those set forth in the forward-looking statements. Factors which could have a material adverse effect on our operations and
future prospects include, but are not limited to:
●

the risk that the mergers (as defined below) will not be consummated within the expected time period or at all;

●

the occurrence of any event, change or other circumstances that could give rise to the termination of the merger agreement
(as defined below);

●

the failure to satisfy the conditions to completion of the mergers;

●

risks related to disruption of management’s attention from the ongoing business operations due to the pending mergers;

●

the effect of the announcement of the mergers on our operating results and business generally;

●

the outcome of any legal proceedings that could arise relating to the mergers;

●

our ability to continue to obtain financing on acceptable terms;

●

our levels of debt and the terms and limitations imposed on us by our debt agreements;

●

our ability to continue to identify and acquire real estate and real estate-related assets on terms that are favorable to us;

●

risks inherent in the real estate business, including the lack of liquidity of real estate investments and potential liability
relating to environmental matters;

●

changes in demand for rooms at our hotel properties;

●

our ability to continue to compete in the hotel industry;

●

adverse developments affecting our sponsor and its affiliates;

●

the availability of cash flow from operating activities for distributions;

●

changes in economic conditions generally and the real estate and debt markets specifically;

●

conflicts of interest arising out of our relationship with our advisor and its affiliates;

●

legislative or regulatory changes (including changes to the laws governing the taxation of real estate investment trusts, or
REITs);
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●

the availability of capital;

●

changes in interest rates; and

●

changes to generally accepted accounting principles, or “GAAP.”

Any of the assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements included herein could be inaccurate, and undue reliance should not
be placed upon any forward-looking statements included herein. All forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this Quarterly
Report, and the risk that actual results will differ materially from the expectations expressed herein will increase with the passage of time.
Except as otherwise required by the federal securities laws, we undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking
statements made after the date of this Quarterly Report, whether as a result of new information, future events, changed circumstances or
any other reason.
All forward-looking statements included in this Quarterly Report should be read in light of the factors identified in the “Risk Factors”
section of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or
the SEC, on March 23, 2017.
Overview
We were formed as a Maryland corporation on January 15, 2008 to invest in a diversified portfolio of real estate investments. We
elected to qualify as a real estate investment trust, or REIT, commencing with the taxable year ended December 31, 2011. We own, and
subject to the mergers described herein, in the future intend to continue to own, substantially all of our assets and conduct our operations
through our operating partnership, of which we are the sole general partner. Subject to certain restrictions and limitations, our business is
externally managed by Moody National Advisor I, LLC, or our advisor, pursuant to an advisory agreement between us and our advisor, or
the advisory agreement. Our advisor conducts our operations and manages our portfolio of real estate investments. Our sponsor, Moody
National REIT Sponsor, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, is owned and managed by Brett C. Moody, who also serves as our
Chief Executive Officer and President and the Chief Executive Officer and President of our advisor. We refer to Moody National REIT
Sponsor, LLC as our “sponsor.”
As of March 31, 2017, our portfolio consisted of fourteen investments: (1) the Woodlands Hotel, a 91-suite hotel property in The
Woodlands, Texas, (2) the Germantown Hotel, a 127-guestroom hotel property located in Germantown, Tennessee, (3) the Charleston
Hotel, a 113-guestroom hotel property located in North Charleston, South Carolina, (4) the Austin Hotel, a 123-suite hotel property located
in Austin, Texas, (5) the Grapevine Hotel, a 133-suite hotel property located in Grapevine, Texas, (6) our joint venture interest in the
Lyndhurst Hotel, a 227-guestroom hotel property located in, Lyndhurst, New Jersey, (7) the Austin Arboretum Hotel, a 138-guestroom
hotel property located in Austin, Texas, (8) the Great Valley Hotel, a 125-guestroom hotel property located in Frazer, Pennsylvania, (9) the
Nashville Hotel, a 208-guestroom hotel property located in Nashville, Tennessee, (10) the Homewood Suites Austin Hotel, a 96-guestroom
hotel property located in Austin, Texas, (11) our joint venture interest in the Fort Worth Hotel, a 95-guestroom hotel property located in
Fort Worth, Texas, (12) the Houston Hotel, a 119-guestroom hotel property located in Houston, Texas, (13) a note receivable from a related
party with an initial principal amount of $9,000,000, and (14) a note receivable from a related party with an initial principal amount of
$4,500,000.
On April 15, 2009, we commenced our initial public offering, or our initial public offering, of up to $1,000,000,000 in shares of our
common stock to the public in our primary offering at $10.00 per share and up to $100,000,000 in shares of our common stock to our
stockholders pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan, or our DRIP, at $9.50 per share. As of the termination of our initial public
offering, we had accepted subscriptions for, and issued, 1,126,253 shares of our common stock in our initial public offering, including
29,582 shares of our common stock pursuant to our DRIP, resulting in offering proceeds of $10,966,713. On October 12, 2012, we
terminated our initial public offering.
On October 12, 2012, we commenced our follow-on public offering, or our follow-on offering, of up to $1,000,000,000 in shares of
our common stock, comprised of up to $900,000,000 in shares offered to the public at $10.00 per share and up to $100,000,000 in shares
offered to our stockholders pursuant to our DRIP at $9.50 per share. Effective February 20, 2015, we terminated the offer and sale of shares
to the public in our follow-on offering, but continued to issue shares pursuant to our DRIP.
On November 4, 2015, we filed a new registration statement on Form S-3 with the SEC to register the sale of up to $25,000,000 in
shares of our common stock pursuant to our DRIP, which we refer to as our “DRIP offering.” On October 13, 2016, our board of directors
suspended our DRIP, which suspension became effective beginning with distributions made in November 2016 and will remain in effect
unless and until our DRIP resumes, as determined by our board of directors. If we resume our DRIP, our board of directors may, in its sole
discretion and from time to time, change the price at which we are offering shares pursuant to our DRIP to reflect changes in our estimated
value per share and other factors that the board of directors deems relevant.
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As of the termination of our follow-on offering, we had accepted investors’ subscriptions for, and issued, 11,716,151
shares of our common stock in our follow-on offering, including 510,457 shares of our common stock issued pursuant to our
DRIP, resulting in aggregate gross offering proceeds of $112,056,934. As of March 31, 2017, we had accepted subscriptions
for, and issued, an aggregate of 12,842,404 shares of common stock in our initial public offering and follow-on offering,
including 540,039 shares of common stock issued pursuant to our DRIP, resulting in aggregate gross offering proceeds of
$123,023,647. As of March 31, 2017, we had sold 388,033 shares in our DRIP offering, and 2,111,967 shares of our common
stock registered in our DRIP offering remained available for sale.
Subject to the mergers described herein, we intend to use substantially all of the proceeds from any offering of our
securities that we may conduct in the future to continue to invest in a diversified portfolio of real properties, real estate
securities and debt-related investments. To date, substantially all of our investments have been in hotel properties, loans
secured by hotel properties or loans to related parties, and we anticipate that our portfolio will continue to consist primarily of
hotel properties located in the United States and Canada that we own exclusively or in joint ventures or other co-ownership
arrangements with other persons. Subject to the availability of sufficient funds or financing on acceptable terms, we may also
invest in other property types consisting of multifamily, office, retail and industrial assets located in the United States and
Canada as well as securities of real estate companies and debt-related investments, as well as opportunistic investments in
properties that may be under-developed or newly constructed and in properties that we believe are undervalued.
We believe that we have sufficient capital to meet our existing debt service and other operating obligations for the
current year and that we have adequate resources to fund our cash needs. However, our operations are subject to a variety of
risks, including, but not limited to, our ability to raise additional funds in any future offerings of our securities, changes in
national economic conditions, the restricted availability of financing, changes in demographic trends and interest rates,
declining real estate valuations and downward pressure on room rates for hotels and risks associated with the pending
mergers described herein. As a result of these uncertainties, there can be no assurance that we will meet our investment
objectives or that the risks described above will not have an adverse effect on our properties or results of operations.
As a REIT, we generally are not subject to federal income tax on income that we distribute to our stockholders. If we fail
to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year after the taxable year in which we initially elect to be taxed as a REIT, we will be
subject to federal income tax on our taxable income at regular corporate rates and will not be permitted to qualify for
treatment as a REIT for federal income tax purposes for four years following the year in which our qualification is denied.
Failing to qualify as a REIT could materially and adversely affect our net income.
Moody Securities, LLC, an affiliate of our advisor, previously served as our dealer manager for our initial public offering
and follow-on offering. We refer to Moody Securities, LLC as our “dealer manager” or “Moody Securities.”
Our principal executive offices are located at 6363 Woodway Drive, Suite 110, Houston, Texas and our telephone
number is (713) 977-7500.
Pending Merger with Moody National REIT II, Inc.
On September 27, 2016, we jointly announced with Moody National REIT II, Inc., a Maryland corporation and a related
party, or Moody II, that we had entered into a non-binding Letter of Intent that set forth the terms and conditions upon which
Moody II would acquire us and our subsidiaries. Moody II is a public, non-listed REIT formed in July 2014. Our sponsor
serves as the sponsor of Moody II, and Brett C. Moody serves as the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of
Moody II.
On November 16, 2016, we, along with our operating partnership, our advisor, Moody II, Moody National Operating
Partnership II, LP, the operating partnership of Moody II, or Moody II OP, Moody National Advisor II, LLC, Moody II’s
advisor, or Moody II advisor, and Moody Merger Sub, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of Moody II, or merger sub, entered
into an agreement and plan of merger, or the merger agreement. Pursuant to the merger agreement, we will merge with and
into merger sub, with merger sub continuing as the “surviving entity” and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Moody II. We refer
to the foregoing transaction as the “merger.” In addition, pursuant to the merger agreement, Moody II OP will merge with
and into our operating partnership, with our operating partnership continuing as the “surviving partnership,” and which
transaction we refer to as the “partnership merger.” Unless context suggests otherwise, we refer to the merger and the
partnership merger together as the “mergers.” The merger agreement was the product of a negotiation between a special
committee of our board of directors and a special committee of the board of directors of Moody II (both consisting solely of
independent directors), each of which was represented by its own counsel and financial advisor. Entry into the merger
agreement was unanimously approved by our board of directors upon the recommendation of the special committee of our
board of directors.
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Subject to the terms and conditions of the merger agreement, Moody II will pay gross consideration of $11.00 per share of our
common stock, which amount will be reduced by certain disposition fees and profit sharing amounts to our sponsor, financial
advisory and legal fees payable by us, and other transaction and closing costs incurred by us to arrive at the net merger
consideration payable to the holders of our common stock, which price we refer to as the “net per share price.” Pursuant to the terms
of the merger agreement, the net per share price was calculated as (i) the gross per share price of $11.00, minus (ii) all fees and
expenses that we incurred as a result of or in connection with the mergers and other transactions contemplated by the merger
agreement, or the Moody I transaction fees and expenses, provided that in no event could the net per share price be less than $10.25.
Subsequent to the execution of the merger agreement, the parties to the merger agreement have determined the final amount of the
Moody I transaction fees and expenses. Based on such determination, the net per share price was determined to be $10.25.
At the effective time of the merger, each outstanding share of our common stock will be automatically cancelled and retired,
and converted into the right to receive, at the election of each holder of such share of our common stock, but subject to the
limitations discussed below, either:
(i) an amount in cash equal to the net per share price, which we refer to as the “cash consideration;” or
(ii) a number of shares of common stock of Moody II, which we refer to as the “stock consideration,” equal to the net per
share price divided by $25.00, which quotient, as adjusted pursuant to the merger agreement, is referred to as the “exchange ratio.”
We refer to the “stock consideration” together with the “cash consideration,” as the “merger consideration.”
Notwithstanding the above, the maximum number of shares of our common stock that may be converted into the right to
receive the cash consideration may not exceed 50% of the aggregate number of shares of our common stock entitled to receive
merger consideration in connection with the merger. If the elections of our stockholders would cause more than 50% of the
aggregate number of shares of our common stock to be converted into the right to receive the cash consideration, then the shares of
our common stock that would be converted into the right to receive the cash consideration will be reduced proportionally so that the
number of shares of our common stock that will be converted into the right to receive the cash consideration will not exceed 50%,
and the remaining shares of our common stock will be converted into the right to receive the stock consideration.
Subject to the terms and conditions of the merger agreement, at the effective time of the partnership merger, each outstanding
unit of limited partnership interest in our operating partnership will be automatically cancelled and retired, and converted into the
right to receive a number of units of limited partnership interests in the surviving partnership equal to the exchange ratio. Each unit
of limited partnership interest in our operating partnership designated as a special partnership unit pursuant to our operating
partnership’s limited partnership agreement will be automatically cancelled and retired and shall cease to exist, and no consideration
shall be paid, nor, except as expressly provided in the termination agreement (described below), shall any other payment or right
inure or be made with respect thereto in connection with or as a consequence of the partnership merger. Each outstanding unit of
limited partnership interest in Moody II OP will be converted into one unit of equity ownership in the surviving partnership, and
each unit designated as a special partnership unit pursuant to the limited partnership agreement of Moody II OP will be converted
into one special unit in the surviving partnership.
The merger agreement contains customary covenants, including covenants prohibiting us and our subsidiaries and
representatives from soliciting, providing information with respect to or entering into discussions concerning proposals relating to
alternative business combination transactions, subject to certain limited exceptions. However, under the terms of the merger
agreement, during the period beginning on November 16, 2016 and continuing until 11:59 p.m. New York City time on December
31, 2016, or the go shop period end time, we had the right to initiate, solicit, provide information and enter into discussions
concerning proposals relating to alternative business combination transactions. Additionally, for up to five business days after the
go shop period end time, we had the right to continue to participate in such discussions with certain other parties, each referred to as
a “go shop bidder,” and could, subject to certain conditions set forth in the merger agreement regarding the proposal made by such
go shop bidder, terminate the merger agreement and enter into an agreement with a go shop bidder with respect to the proposal
made by such go shop bidder.
In the go shop process described in the preceding paragraph, 99 prospective buyers, including 77 prospective financial buyers
and 22 prospective strategic buyers, were contacted regarding each such party’s potential interest in exploring a transaction with us.
During the go shop period (i.e., between November 16, 2016 and December 31, 2016), seven parties (two of which were financial
buyers and five of which were strategic buyers) negotiated and entered into confidentiality agreements with us and were provided
with non-public information about us. None of the parties contacted during the go shop process, including the seven parties that
entered into confidentiality agreements with us, submitted a proposal to us that was deemed an “acquisition proposal” under the
merger agreement prior to the go shop period end time.
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In connection with the mergers, we will also seek the approval of our stockholders of an amendment to our Second Articles of
Amendment and Restatement, as amended, or our charter, to delete certain provisions regarding roll-up transactions, or the charter
amendment. Pursuant to the merger agreement, approval by our stockholders of the charter amendment is a condition to completing
the mergers.
Concurrently with the entry into the merger agreement, we, our operating partnership, our advisor, Moody II, Moody National
Realty Company, LP, or Moody National, and Moody OP Holdings I, LLC, or OP Holdings, the holder of all of the outstanding
special partnership units in our operating partnership, entered into a termination agreement, or the termination agreement. Pursuant
to the termination agreement, at the effective time of the mergers, the advisory agreement among us, our operating partnership, our
advisor and Moody National will be terminated and we will pay our advisor a payment of $5,580,685, or the Moody I advisor
payment. The Moody I advisor payment was a negotiated amount that represents a reduction in the disposition fee to which our
advisor could have been entitled and a waiver of any other contractual termination fee that our advisor would have been due under
the advisory agreement in connection with the merger. In addition, the termination agreement provides that at the effective time of
the partnership merger and in accordance with the terms of the limited partnership agreement of our operating partnership, our
operating partnership will pay to OP Holdings an amount not to exceed $613,751, or the promote payment. In the event that the
merger agreement is terminated prior to the consummation of the mergers, the termination agreement will automatically terminate
and be of no further effect and no Moody I advisor payment or promote payment will be owed and payable.
Also concurrently with the entry into the merger agreement, Moody II, Moody II OP and Moody II advisor entered into an
amended and restated advisory agreement, pursuant to which Moody II will be obligated to pay Moody II advisor an acquisition fee
of 1.5% of the aggregate cash consideration paid in the merger. However, during the first year following the consummation of the
mergers, if Moody II sells a property that was previously owned by us, then any disposition fee to which Moody II advisor would
otherwise be entitled under the amended and restated advisory agreement will be reduced by an amount equal to the portion of the
Moody I advisor payment attributable to such property.
The merger agreement may be terminated under certain circumstances by both Moody II and us. If such termination occurs
under certain circumstances, then we would be obligated to pay Moody II a termination fee of either $1,000,000 or $2,000,000,
depending on the occurrence of certain conditions, plus an expense reimbursement fee of up to $500,000. The merger agreement
also provides that one party may be required to reimburse the other party’s expenses, up to $500,000, if the merger agreement is
terminated under certain circumstances.
The obligation of each party to consummate the mergers is subject to a number of conditions, including the approval of our
stockholders. of the mergers and the charter amendment, receipt of any regulatory approvals, delivery of certain documents and
consents, the truth and correctness of the representations and warranties of the parties, subject to the materiality standards contained
in the merger agreement, and the absence of a material adverse effect with respect to either us or Moody II. There is no guarantee
that the mergers will close. A special meeting of our stockholders to vote on the Merger and the Charter Amendment is currently
scheduled to be held on May 24, 2017. Our management has, and will continue to, expend time and resources to consummate the
mergers, which time and resources may otherwise have been allocated to our other operational needs.
In connection with the mergers, on February 2, 2017, Moody II entered into a stockholder servicing coordination agreement, or
the stockholder servicing coordination agreement, with Moody Securities. Pursuant to the stockholder servicing coordination
agreement, Moody II will pay to Moody Securities certain stockholder servicing fees, or the stockholder servicing fees, of up to
$2.125 per share of Moody II’s common stock issued as stock consideration. All stockholder servicing fees will be re-allowed to
broker-dealers that provide ongoing financial advisory services to our stockholders following the mergers and that enter into
participating broker-dealer agreements with Moody Securities. The aggregate amount of stockholder servicing fees will depend on
the number of shares of Moody II’s common stock issued as consideration in the merger, and could range from approximately
$5,797,034 to $11,594,068, assuming that the maximum stockholder servicing fee of $2.125 per share is paid for all shares issued as
stock consideration. No stockholder servicing fees will be paid with respect to any cash paid by Moody II as cash consideration in
the merger.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Subject to the pending mergers, our principal demand for funds is for the acquisition of real estate assets, the payment of
operating expenses, principal and interest payments on our outstanding indebtedness and the payment of distributions to our
stockholders. Also subject to the pending mergers, over time we intend to generally fund our cash needs for items other than asset
acquisitions from operations. Our cash needs for acquisitions and investments will be funded primarily from the sale of shares
pursuant to our DRIP (in the event that we reactivate our DRIP), the proceeds of any offerings of our securities we conduct in the
future and the assumption and origination of debt.
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Our advisor, subject to the oversight of our investment committee and board of directors, will evaluate potential
acquisitions and will engage in negotiations with sellers and lenders on our behalf. If necessary, we may use financings or
other sources of capital in the event of unforeseen significant capital expenditures.
We may, but are not required to, establish working capital reserves out of cash flow generated by our real estate assets or
out of proceeds from the sale of our real estate assets. We do not anticipate establishing a general working capital reserve;
however, we may establish working capital reserves with respect to particular investments. We also may, but are not required
to, establish reserves out of cash flow generated by our real estate assets or out of net sale proceeds in non-liquidating sale
transactions. Working capital reserves are typically utilized to fund tenant improvements, leasing commissions and major
capital expenditures. Our lenders also may require working capital reserves.
To the extent that any working capital reserve we establish is insufficient to satisfy our cash requirements, additional
funds may be provided from cash generated from operations, short-term borrowing, equity capital from joint venture
partners, or the proceeds of additional public or private offerings of our shares or interests in our operating partnership. In
addition, subject to certain limitations, we may incur indebtedness in connection with the acquisition of any real estate asset,
refinance the debt thereon, arrange for the leveraging of any previously unfinanced property or reinvest the proceeds of
financing or refinancing in additional properties. There can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain such capital or
financing on favorable terms, if at all.
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
As of March 31, 2017, we owned interests in twelve hotel properties, including two joint venture interests. Net cash
provided by operating activities for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 was $3,631,643 and $1,859,867,
respectively. The increase in cash provided by operating activities for the three months ended March 31, 2017 was primarily
due to a decrease in net loss, an increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses, and a decrease in amounts due from
related parties.
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities
Net cash provided by investing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 was $276,675 and
$638,493, respectively. The decrease in cash used in investing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2017 was
primarily due to a decrease in the change in restricted cash to $647,785 for the three months ended March 31, 2017 from
$3,096,312 for the three months ended March 31, 2016 offset by repayments of notes receivable from related parties of
$1,000,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and a decrease in improvements and additions to hotel properties to
$1,371,110 for the three months ended March 31, 2017 from $3,638,761 for the three months ended March 31, 2016.
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities
Our cash flows used in financing activities consisted primarily of distributions paid to our stockholders and repayments
of notes payable. Net cash used in financing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 was $3,266,431
and $2,536,423, respectively. The increase in cash used financing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2017, was
primarily due to an increase in dividends paid to $2,622,577 for the three months ended March 31, 2017 from $1,643,571 for
the three months ended March 31, 2016 due to the suspension of the DRIP.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
As of March 31, 2017, we had cash on hand of $3,061,270.
Debt
We use, and intend to use in the future, secured and unsecured debt as a means of providing additional funds for the
acquisition of real property, securities and debt-related investments. By operating on a leveraged basis, we expect that we will
have more funds available for investments. This will generally allow us to make more investments than would otherwise be
possible, potentially resulting in enhanced investment returns and a more diversified portfolio. However, our use of leverage
increases the risk of default on loan payments and the resulting foreclosure on a particular asset. In addition, lenders may
have recourse to assets other than those specifically securing the repayment of the indebtedness. When debt financing is
unattractive due to high interest rates or other reasons, or when financing is otherwise unavailable on a timely basis, we may
purchase certain assets for cash with the intention of obtaining debt financing at a later time.
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As of March 31, 2017, our outstanding indebtedness totaled $171,174,111. Our aggregate borrowings are reviewed by
our board of directors at least quarterly. Under our Second Articles of Amendment and Restatement, or our charter, we are
prohibited from borrowing in excess of 300% of the value of our net assets. “Net assets” for purposes of this calculation is
defined to be our total assets (other than intangibles), valued at cost prior to deducting depreciation, reserves for bad debts
and other non-cash reserves, less total liabilities. The preceding calculation is generally expected to approximate 75% of the
aggregate cost of our assets before non-cash reserves and depreciation. However, we may temporarily borrow in excess of
these amounts if such excess is approved by a majority of our independent directors and disclosed to our stockholders in our
next quarterly report, along with an explanation for such excess. As of March 31, 2017 and 2016, our debt levels did not
exceed 300% of the value of our net assets.
We intend to refinance three loans secured by hotel properties maturing in 2017. We plan to extend one loan and
refinance the other two, either with a new loan obtained by Moody II in connection with the merger, or with new loans.
Contractual Commitments and Contingencies
The following is a summary of our contractual obligations as of March 31, 2017:
Payments Due By Period
Contractual Obligations
Total
2017
2018-2019
2020-2021
Long-term debt obligations(1) ......................
$ 171,174,111 $ 43,580,141 $
4,394,418 $ 4,808,940
Interest payments on outstanding
debt obligations(2) .................................... 44,597,019
5,629,941
11,780,274
11,365,751
Total ............................................................
$ 215,771,130 $ 49,210,082 $ 16,174,692 $ 16,174,691

Thereafter
$ 118,390,612
15,821,053
$ 134,211,665

(1) Amounts include principal payments only.
(2) Projected interest payments are based on the outstanding principal amounts and weighted-average interest rates at March
31, 2017.
Organization and Offering Costs
Pursuant to our advisory agreement with our advisor, we are obligated to reimburse our advisor and its affiliates, as
applicable, for organization and offering costs incurred on our behalf associated with each of our public offerings, but only to
the extent that such reimbursements do not exceed actual expenses incurred by our advisor and would not cause sales
commissions, the dealer manager fee and other organization and offering costs borne by us in a public offering to exceed
15.0% of gross offering proceeds from the sale of our shares in such public offering as of the date of reimbursement. Our
advisor was obligated to reimburse us to the extent organization and offering costs (including sales commissions and dealer
manager fees) incurred by us in a public offering exceeded 15.0% of the gross offering proceeds from the sale of our shares
of common stock in such public offering.
Total offering costs for our initial public offering, which terminated on October 12, 2012, were $4,132,374. We directly
incurred offering costs of $946,944 for our initial public offering and reimbursed our advisor for $742,134 in offering costs
for our initial public offering. The remaining $2,443,296 in offering costs related to our initial public offering is not our
liability because such costs exceeded 15.0% of the gross offering proceeds from the sale of our shares of common stock in
our completed initial public offering. We reimbursed our advisor for $28,083 in organization costs for our initial public
offering.
Total offering costs for our follow-on offering, which terminated on February 20, 2015, were $14,125,202. We directly
incurred $11,400,339 of offering costs for our follow-on offering, and $2,724,863 in offering costs were reimbursable to our
advisor. The total offering costs related to our follow-on offering did not exceed 15.0% of the gross offering proceeds from
the sale of our shares of common stock in our follow-on offering. As of December 31, 2016, total offering costs for the DRIP
offering were $124,000. We directly incurred $0 of offering costs for the DRIP offering and $124,000 in offering costs were
reimbursed to our advisor. As of December 31, 2016, we had $0 payable to our advisor for offering costs related to our
follow-on offering and the DRIP offering. We have not reimbursed our advisor any funds for organization costs for our
follow-on offering.
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Operating Expenses
Pursuant to our charter, we will reimburse our advisor for all operating expenses paid or incurred by our advisor in connection
with the services provided to us, subject to the limitation that we will not reimburse our advisor for any amount by which its
operating expenses (including the asset management fee) at the end of the four preceding fiscal quarters exceeds the greater of:
(1)2% of our average invested assets, or (2)25% of our net income determined without reduction for any additions to reserves for
depreciation, bad debts or other similar non-cash reserves and excluding any gain from the sale of our assets for that period, which
we refer to as the “2%/25% Limitation.” Notwithstanding the above, we may reimburse our advisor for expenses in excess of this
limitation if a majority of our independent directors determines that such excess expenses are justified based on unusual and nonrecurring factors. For the four fiscal quarters ended March 31, 2017, our total operating expenses were $3,958,194, which included
$2,799,407 in operating expenses incurred directly by us and $1,158,787 incurred by our advisor on our behalf. Of the $3,958,194
in total operating expenses incurred during the four fiscal quarters ended March 31, 2017, $0 exceeded the 2%/25% Limitation. We
reimbursed our advisor approximately $1,158,000 in operating expenses during the four fiscal quarters ended March 31, 2017.
Additionally, our advisor has incurred $5,783,132 in operating expenses on our behalf prior to the four fiscal quarters ended March
31, 2017. Subject to a future determination by the board of directors, this amount is not reimbursable to our advisor and is not our
obligation.
Our advisor has waived all operating expenses reimbursable to our advisor for each of the 12 prior fiscal quarters ended March
31, 2014, which we refer to as the “Waiver Period,” to the extent such expenses had not been previously reimbursed to our advisor.
Our advisor further agreed that all expenses incurred directly by us during the Waiver Period would be paid by our advisor on our
behalf. Total reimbursable expenses so waived or assumed by our advisor were $1,967,721 as of March 31, 2017.
Results of Operations
As of March 31, 2017, we had acquired one hotel property since March 31, 2016. Accordingly, our results of operations for the
three months ended March 31, 2017 are not directly comparable to those for the three months ended March 31, 2016. In general,
and subject to the pending mergers, we expect that our income and expenses related to our investment portfolio will increase in
future periods as a result of growth in our real estate-related investments.
Comparison of the three months ended March 31, 2017 versus the three months ended March 31, 2016
Revenue
Total revenue increased to $14,846,148 for the three months ended March 31, 2017 from $14,113,392 for the three months
ended March 31, 2016. Total hotel revenue increased to $14,435,548 for the quarter ended March 31, 2017 from $13,668,177 for
the quarter ended March 31, 2016. The increase in hotel revenue was primarily due to the fact that we owned interests in twelve
hotel properties at March 31, 2017 compared to eleven hotel properties at March 31, 2016. Interest income related to our notes
receivable decreased to $410,600 for the quarter ended March 31, 2017 from $445,215 for the quarter ended March 31, 2016. A
comparison of hotel revenues for those hotels owned continuously for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 follows:

Woodlands Hotel ..................................................................................... $
Germantown Hotel...................................................................................
Charleston Hotel ......................................................................................
Austin Hotel .............................................................................................
Grapevine Hotel .......................................................................................
Lyndhurst Hotel .......................................................................................
Austin Arboretum Hotel ..........................................................................
Great Valley Hotel ...................................................................................
Nashville Hotel ........................................................................................
Homewood Suites Austin Hotel...............................................................
Fort Worth Hotel......................................................................................
Totals ...................................................................................................... $

Three Months Ended
March,
2017
2016
578,998 $
821,009
954,965
932,887
984,144
930,405
1,158,983
848,763
1,625,314
1,655,218
1,895,357
1,852,271
1,444,547
1,225,510
736,329
774,905
3,083,284
2,905,243
724,875
1,140,299
575,427
581,667
13,762,223 $
13,668,177

Increase
(Decrease)
$
(242,011)
22,078
53,739
310,220
(29,904)
43,086
219,037
(38,576)
178,041
(415,424)
(6,240)
$
94,046

Revenues at the Woodlands Hotel and the Homewood Suites Austin Hotel decreased in the first quarter of 2017 compared to
the first quarter of 2016, due primarily to the downturn in the energy industry in Texas and to property improvements made during
the period, which disrupted occupancy.

32

Hotel Operating Expenses
Hotel operating expenses increased to $9,008,281 for the three months ended March 31, 2017 from $8,463,385 for the
three months ended March 31, 2016. The increase in hotel operating expenses was primarily due to the fact that we owned
interests in twelve hotel properties at March 31, 2017 compared to eleven hotel properties at March 31, 2016.
Property Taxes, Insurance and Other
Property taxes, insurance and other increased to $996,900 for the three months ended March 31, 2017 from $905,909 for
the three months ended March 31, 2016. This increase was due to the fact that we owned interests in twelve hotel properties
at March 31, 2017 compared to eleven hotel properties at March 31, 2016.
Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation expense decreased to $2,671,060 for the three months ended March 31, 2017 from $2,778,327 for the three
months ended March 31, 2016. The decrease in depreciation and amortization expense was primarily due to the fact that
depreciation was computed on furniture, fixtures and improvements using a declining balance method even though we owned
interests in twelve hotel properties at March 31, 2017 compared to eleven hotel properties at March 31, 2016.
Acquisition Expenses
Acquisition expenses increased to $96,162 for the three months ended March 31, 2017 from $0 for the three months
ended March 31, 2016. The increase was due to costs incurred related to the pending merger during the first quarter of 2017.
Corporate General and Administrative Expenses
Corporate general and administrative expenses increased to $1,127,658 for the three months ended March 31, 2017 from
$1,200,836 for the three months ended March 31, 2016. These general and administrative expenses consisted primarily of
asset management fees, directors’ fees and professional fees. Asset management fees increased during the three months
ended March 31, 2017 from the three months ended March 31, 2016 because we owned more hotel properties during the
three months ended March 31, 2017. We expect corporate general and administrative expenses to increase in future periods
as a result of cost increases, but to decrease as a percentage of total revenue as a result of revenue growth.
Interest Expense and Amortization of Debt Issuance Costs
Interest expense decreased to $2,301,341 for the three months ended March 31, 2017 from $2,322,178 for the three
months ended March 31, 2016. This decrease in interest expense was due to the fact that we incurred additional indebtedness
related to a hotel property acquisition since March 31, 2016 offset by the repayment of the Hyatt Place note. In future periods
our interest expense will vary based on the amount of our borrowings, which will depend on the availability and cost of
borrowings, the amount of proceeds from other financing sources to acquire assets and our ability to identify and acquire real
estate and real estate-related assets that meet our investment objectives.
Income Tax Benefit
Income tax benefit for the three months ended March 31, 2017 was $401,703 compared to $257,000 for the three months
ended March 31, 2016. The increase was due to increases in taxable losses of the TRSs for the three months ended March 31,
2017 compared to taxable losses for the three months ended March 31, 2016.
Critical Accounting Policies
General
Our accounting policies have been established to conform with GAAP. The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with GAAP requires management to use judgment in the application of accounting policies, including making
estimates and assumptions. These judgments affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the reporting periods. If management’s judgment or interpretation of the facts and circumstances relating to various
transactions is different, it is possible that different accounting policies will be applied or different amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses will be recorded, resulting in a different presentation of the financial statements or different
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements. Additionally, other companies may utilize different estimates that
may impact the comparability of our results of operations to those of companies in similar businesses. These policies require
complex judgment in their application or estimates about matters that are inherently uncertain.
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Income Taxes
We have made an election to be taxed as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue Code
commencing with the taxable year ended December 31, 2011. Prior to qualifying to be taxed as a REIT, we were subject to
normal federal and state corporation income taxes.
As a REIT, we generally will not be subject to federal corporate income tax to the extent we distribute our REIT taxable
income to our stockholders, so long as we distribute at least 90% of our REIT taxable income (which is computed without
regard to the dividends-paid deduction or net capital gain and which does not necessarily equal net income as calculated in
accordance with GAAP) and satisfy the other organizational and operational requirements for REIT qualification. Even if we
qualify for taxation as a REIT, we may be subject to certain state and local taxes on our income and property, and federal
income and excise taxes on our undistributed income. We lease the hotels we acquire to wholly-owned TRSs that are subject
to federal, state and local income taxes.
With respect to our TRS entities, we account for income taxes using the asset and liability method under which deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. A valuation allowance is recorded
for net deferred tax assets that are not expected to be realized.
We have reviewed tax positions under GAAP guidance that clarifies the relevant criteria and approach for the
recognition and measurement of uncertain tax positions. The guidance prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement
attribute for the financial statement recognition of a tax position taken, or expected to be taken, in a tax return. A tax position
may only be recognized in the consolidated financial statements if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be
sustained upon examination. We had no material uncertain tax positions as of March 31, 2017.
The preparation of our various tax returns requires the use of estimates for federal and state income tax purposes. These
estimates may be subjected to review by the respective taxing authorities. A revision to an estimate may result in an
assessment of additional taxes, penalties and interest. At this time, a range in which our estimates may change is not expected
to be material. We will account for interest and penalties relating to uncertain tax positions in the current period statement of
operations, if necessary. We have tax years 2012 through 2016 remaining subject to examination by various federal and state
tax jurisdictions.
Valuation and Allocation of Hotel Properties — Acquisitions
Upon acquisition, the purchase price of hotel properties is allocated to the tangible assets acquired, consisting of land,
buildings and furniture, fixtures and equipment, any assumed debt, identified intangible assets and asset retirement
obligations based on their fair values. Acquisition costs are charged to expense as incurred. Initial valuations are subject to
change during the measurement period, but the measurement period ends as soon as the information is available. The
measurement period shall not exceed one year from the acquisition date.
The fair value of the tangible assets acquired consists of land, buildings, and furniture, fixtures and equipment. Land
values are derived from appraisals, and building values are calculated as replacement cost less depreciation or our estimates
of the relative fair value of these assets using discounted cash flow analyses or similar methods. The value of furniture,
fixtures and equipment is based on their fair value using replacement costs less depreciation.
We determine the fair value of assumed debt by calculating the net present value of the scheduled mortgage payments
using interest rates for debt with similar terms and remaining maturities that we believe we could obtain. Any difference
between the fair value and stated value of the assumed debt is recorded as a discount or premium and amortized over the
remaining life of the loan as interest expense.
In allocating the purchase price of each of our properties, our advisor makes assumptions and uses various estimates,
including, but not limited to, the estimated useful lives of the assets, the cost of replacing certain assets, discount rates used to
determine present values and market rental rates. Many of these estimates are obtained from independent third party
appraisals. However, we are responsible for the source and use of these estimates. These estimates are judgmental and subject
to being imprecise; accordingly, if different estimates and assumptions were derived, the valuation of the various categories
of our real estate assets or related intangibles could in turn result in a difference in the depreciation or amortization expense
recorded in our consolidated financial statements. These variances could be material to our results of operations and financial
condition.

34

Valuation and Allocation of Hotel Properties — Ownership
Depreciation expense is computed using the straight-line and accelerated methods based upon the following estimated useful
lives:

Buildings and improvements .................................................................................
Exterior improvements ..........................................................................................
Equipment and fixtures .........................................................................................

Estimated
Useful Lives
39-40 years
10-20
5-10

Impairments
We monitor events and changes in circumstances indicating that the carrying amounts of our hotel properties may not be
recoverable. When such events or changes in circumstances are present, we assess potential impairment by comparing estimated
future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated over the life of the asset from operating activities and from its eventual
disposition, to the carrying amount of the asset. In the event that the carrying amount exceeds the estimated future undiscounted
cash flows, we recognize an impairment loss to adjust the carrying amount of the asset to estimated fair value for assets held for use
and fair value less costs to sell for assets held for sale. There were no such impairment losses for the three months ended March 31,
2017 and 2016.
In evaluating our hotel properties for impairment, we make several estimates and assumptions, including, but not limited to, the
projected date of disposition of the properties, the estimated future cash flows of the properties during our ownership and the
projected sales price of each of the properties. A change in these estimates and assumptions could result in a change in the estimated
undiscounted cash flows or fair value of our hotel properties which could then result in different conclusions regarding impairment
and material changes to our consolidated financial statements.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or the FASB, issued Accounting Standards Update, or ASU, No.
2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers,” which requires an entity to recognize the amount of revenue to which it
expects to be entitled for the transfer of promised goods or services to customers. ASU No. 2014-09 will replace most existing
revenue recognition guidance in GAAP when it becomes effective. The standard permits the use of either the full retrospective or
modified retrospective adoption. In July 2015, the FASB voted to defer the effective date to January 1, 2018 with early adoption
beginning January 1, 2017. We have begun to evaluate each of our revenue streams under the new model. Based on preliminary
assessments, we do not expect the adoption of ASU No. 2014-09 to have a material effect on our consolidated financial position or
our consolidated results of operations.
In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-01, “Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Liabilities,”
which enhances the reporting requirements surrounding the measurement of financial instruments and requires equity securities to
be measured at fair value with changes in the fair value recognized through net income for the period. ASU No. 2016-01 is effective
for our fiscal year commencing on January 1, 2018. We do not anticipate that the adoption of ASU No. 2016-01 will have a material
effect on our consolidated financial position or our consolidated results of operations.
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, “Leases,” which changes lessee accounting to reflect the financial
liability and right-of-use assets that are inherent to leasing an asset on the balance sheet. ASU No. 2016-02 is effective for our fiscal
year commencing on January 1, 2019, but early adoption is permitted. The effect that the adoption of ASU No. 2016-02 will have
on our consolidated financial position or our consolidated results of operations is not currently reasonably estimable.
In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15, “Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments,” which
addresses the Statement of Cash Flow classification and presentation of certain cash transactions. ASU No. 2016-15 is effective for
our fiscal year commencing on January 1, 2018. The effect of this amendment is to be applied retrospectively where practical and
early adoption is permitted. Subject to the pending mergers, we expect to adopt ASU No. 2016-15 for our fiscal year commencing
on January 1, 2018. We do not believe that the adoption of ASU No. 2016-15 will have a material effect on our consolidated
financial position or our consolidated results of operations.
In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-18, “Classification of Restricted Cash,” which addresses the Statement of
Cash Flow classification and presentation of restricted cash transactions. ASU No. 2016-18 is effective for our fiscal year
commencing on January 1, 2018. The effect of this amendment is to be applied retrospectively and early adoption is permitted.
Subject to the pending mergers, we expect to adopt ASU No. 2016-18 for our fiscal year commencing on January 1, 2018. We do
not believe that the adoption of ASU No. 2016-18 will have a material effect on our consolidated financial position or our
consolidated results of operations.
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In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-01, “Clarifying the Definition of a Business,” with the objective of adding guidance
to assist entities with evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as an acquisition of assets or a business. ASU No. 2017-01 is
effective for our fiscal year commencing on January 1, 2018. The effect of this guidance is to be applied prospectively and early adoption is
permitted. We do not believe that the adoption of ASU No. 2017-01 will have a material effect on our consolidated financial position or our
consolidated results of operations.
Inflation
As of March 31, 2017, our investments consisted of ownership interests in twelve hotel properties and our notes receivable from
related parties. Operators of hotels, in general, possess the ability to adjust room rates daily to reflect the effects of inflation. Competitive
pressures may, however, limit the operators’ ability to raise room rates. We are currently not experiencing any material impact from
inflation.
REIT Compliance
To qualify as a REIT for tax purposes, we will be required to distribute at least 90% of our REIT taxable income to our stockholders.
We must also meet certain asset and income tests, as well as other requirements. We will monitor the business and transactions that may
potentially impact our REIT status. If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year following the taxable year in which we initially elect
to be taxed as a REIT, we will be subject to federal income tax (including any applicable alternative minimum tax) on our taxable income
at regular corporate rates and generally will not be permitted to qualify for treatment as a REIT for federal income tax purposes for the four
taxable years following the year during which our REIT qualification is lost unless the Internal Revenue Service grants us relief under
certain statutory provisions. Such an event could materially adversely affect our net income and net cash available for distribution to our
stockholders.
Distributions
Our board of directors has authorized distributions to our stockholders that (1) accrue daily to our stockholders of record on each day;
(2) are payable in cumulative amounts on or before the 15th day of each calendar month and (3) are calculated at a rate of $0.002192 per
share of our common stock per day, which, if paid each day over a 365-day period, is equivalent to an 8.0% annualized distribution rate
based on a purchase price of $10.00 per share of our common stock.
The following table summarizes distributions paid in cash and pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan for the three months
ended March 31, 2017 and 2016:
Distribution Paid
Cash
Pursuant
Period
Distribution
to DRIP(1)
First Quarter 2017 .............................................................................................................................................
$
2,622,577 $
—
First Quarter 2016 .............................................................................................................................................
$
1,643,571 $
965,287

$
$

Total
Amount of
Distribution
2,622,577
2,608,858

(1) Amount of distributions paid in shares of common stock pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan. The DRIP was suspended in
October 2016.
We paid $2,622,577 in aggregate distributions during the three months ended March 31, 2017, which was comprised of $2,622,577 in
cash distributions and $0 in shares issued pursuant to our DRIP. We paid $2,608,858 in aggregate distributions during the three months
ended March 31, 2016, which was comprised of $1,643,571 in cash distributions and $965,287 in shares issued pursuant to our DRIP. For
the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, we had cash provided by operating activities of $3,631,643 and $1,859,867,
respectively. Approximately 100% of distributions paid during the three months ended March 31, 2017, were paid from cash provided by
operating activities and approximately 0% were paid from offering proceeds. Approximately 71% of distributions paid during the three
months ended March 31, 2016, were paid from cash provided by operating activities and approximately 29% were paid from offering
proceeds.
Funds from Operations and Modified Funds from Operations
One of our objectives is to provide cash distributions to our stockholders from cash generated by our operations. Cash generated from
operations is not equivalent to net income as determined under GAAP. Due to certain unique operating characteristics of real estate
companies, the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts, or NAREIT, an industry trade group, has promulgated a standard
known as Funds from Operations, or FFO, which it believes more accurately reflects the operating performance of a REIT. As defined by
NAREIT, FFO means net income computed in accordance with GAAP, excluding gains (or losses) from sales of property, plus
depreciation and amortization, and after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures in which the REIT holds an interest.
We have adopted the NAREIT definition for computing FFO because, in our view, FFO is a meaningful supplemental performance
measure in conjunction with net income.
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Changes in the accounting and reporting rules under GAAP that have been put into effect since the establishment of NAREIT’s
definition of FFO have prompted a significant increase in the magnitude of non-cash and non-operating items included in FFO, as
defined. As a result, in addition to FFO, we also calculate modified funds from operations, or MFFO, a non-GAAP supplemental
financial performance measure that our management uses in evaluating our operating performance. Similar to FFO, MFFO excludes
items such as depreciation and amortization. However, MFFO excludes non-cash and non-operating items included in FFO, such as
amortization of certain in-place lease intangible assets and liabilities and the amortization of certain tenant incentives. Our
calculation of MFFO will exclude these items, as well as the effects of straight-line rent revenue recognition, fair value adjustments
to derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment, non-cash impairment charges and certain other items,
when applicable. Our calculation of MFFO will also include, when applicable, items such as master lease rental receipts, which are
excluded from net income (loss) and FFO, but which we consider in the evaluation of the operating performance of our real estate
investments.
We believe that MFFO reflects the overall impact on the performance of our real estate investments of occupancy rates, rental
rates, property operating costs and development activities, as well as general and administrative expenses and interest costs, which
is not immediately apparent from net income (loss). As such, we believe MFFO, in addition to net income (loss) as defined by
GAAP, is a meaningful supplemental performance measure which is used by our management to evaluate our operating
performance and determine our operating, financing and dividend policies.
Please see the limitations listed below associated with the use of MFFO as compared to net income (loss):
●

Our calculation of MFFO will exclude any gains (losses) related to changes in estimated values of derivative instruments
related to any interest rate swaps which we hold. Although we expect to hold these instruments to maturity, if we were to
settle these instruments prior to maturity, it would have an impact on our operations. We do not currently hold any such
derivate instruments and thus our calculation of MFFO set forth in the table below does not reflect any such exclusion.

●

Our calculation of MFFO will exclude any impairment charges related to long-lived assets that have been written down to
current market valuations. Although these losses will be included in the calculation of net income (loss), we will exclude
them from MFFO because we believe doing so will more appropriately present the operating performance of our real
estate investments on a comparative basis. We have not recognized any such impairment charges and thus our calculation
of MFFO set forth in the table below does not reflect any such exclusion.

●

Our calculation of MFFO will exclude organizational and acquisition expenses. Although these amounts reduce net
income, we fund such costs with proceeds from our offering and acquisition-related indebtedness and do not consider
these expenses in the evaluation of our operating performance and determining MFFO. Our calculation of MFFO set forth
in the table below reflects such exclusions.

We believe MFFO is useful to investors in evaluating how our portfolio might perform since our offering stage has been
completed and, as a result, may provide an indication of the sustainability of our distributions in the future. However, as described
in greater detail below, MFFO should not be considered as an alternative to net income (loss) or as an indication of our liquidity.
Many of the adjustments to MFFO are similar to adjustments required by SEC rules for the presentation of pro forma business
combination disclosures, particularly acquisition expenses, gains or losses recognized in business combinations and other activity
not representative of future activities. MFFO is also more comparable in evaluating our performance over time and as compared to
other real estate companies, which may not be as involved in acquisition activities or as affected by impairments and other nonoperating charges.
MFFO has limitations as a performance measure. However, it is useful in assisting management and investors in assessing the
sustainability of operating performance in future operating periods, and in particular, after the offering and acquisition stages are
complete and net asset value is disclosed. MFFO is not a useful measure in evaluating net asset value because impairments are taken
into account in determining net asset value but not in determining MFFO. Investors are cautioned that due to the fact that
impairments are based on estimated future undiscounted cash flows and given the relatively limited term of our operations, it could
be difficult to recover any impairment charges.
The calculation of FFO and MFFO may vary from entity to entity because capitalization and expense policies tend to vary from
entity to entity. Consequently, our presentation of FFO and MFFO may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures
presented by other REITs. In addition, FFO and MFFO should not be considered as an alternative to net income (loss) or to cash
flows from operating activities and are not intended to be used as a liquidity measure indicative of cash flow available to fund our
cash needs. Acquisition costs and other adjustments increased our MFFO which were significant uses of cash when we were in the
acquisition phase of our life cycle. MFFO also excludes impairment charges, rental revenue adjustments and unrealized gains and
losses related to certain other fair value adjustments. Accordingly, both FFO and MFFO should be reviewed in connection with
other GAAP measurements.
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The table below summarizes our calculation of FFO and MFFO for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, and a
reconciliation of such non-GAAP financial performance measures to our net income (loss).
Three Months Ended
March 31,
2017
2016
Net Loss ...................................................................................................................................................
$
(953,551) $
(1,300,243)
Adjustments:
Depreciation of real estate assets and amortization of deferred costs ..................................................
2,671,060
2,778,327
Adjustments for noncontrolling interests .............................................................................................
—
(19,657)
Funds from Operations ............................................................................................................................
1,717,509
1,458,427
Adjustments:
Stock-based compensation ...................................................................................................................
—
7,000
Amortization of debt issuance costs .....................................................................................................177,047
150,266
Acquisition expenses ............................................................................................................................ 96,162
—
Adjustments for noncontrolling interests .............................................................................................
—
(685)
Modified Funds from Operations .............................................................................................................
$
1,990,718 $
1,615,008
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
As of March 31, 2017, we had no off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future
effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital
expenditures or capital resources.
Related-Party Transactions and Agreements
We have entered into agreements with our advisor and its affiliates whereby we have paid, and may continue to pay, certain
fees to, or reimburse certain expenses of, our advisor or its affiliates for acquisition and advisory fees and expenses, financing
coordination fees, organization and offering costs, sales commissions, dealer manager fees, asset and property management fees and
expenses, leasing fees and reimbursement of certain operating costs. Additionally, we have entered into joint venture arrangements
with affiliates of our advisor in connection with the acquisition of certain of our investments. See Note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements included in this Quarterly Report for a discussion of the various related-party transactions, agreements and fees.
Subsequent Events
Distributions Declared
On March 31, 2017, we declared a distribution in the aggregate amount of $903,958, which was paid in cash on April 15, 2017.
On April 30, 2017, we declared a distribution in the aggregate amount of $874,706, which is scheduled to be paid in May 15, 2017.
Houston Hotel Loan
On April 28, 2017, the maturity date of the loan secured by our Houston hotel was extended to July 28, 2017. All other terms
and conditions of the loan remained unchanged.
ITEM 3.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

Market risk is the adverse effect on the value of a financial instrument that results from a change in interest rates. We may be
exposed to interest rate changes primarily as a result of long-term debt used to maintain liquidity, fund capital expenditures and
expand our real estate investment portfolio and operations. Market fluctuations in real estate financing may affect the availability
and cost of funds needed to expand our investment portfolio. In addition, restrictions upon the availability of real estate financing or
high interest rates for real estate loans could adversely affect our ability to dispose of real estate in the future. We will seek to limit
the impact of interest rate changes on earnings and cash flows and to lower our overall borrowing costs. We may use derivative
financial instruments to hedge exposures to changes in interest rates on loans secured by our assets. The market risk associated with
interest-rate contracts is managed by establishing and monitoring parameters that limit the types and degree of market risk that may
be undertaken.
With regard to variable rate financing, our advisor will assess our interest rate cash flow risk by continually identifying and
monitoring changes in interest rate exposures that may adversely impact expected future cash flows and by evaluating hedging
opportunities. Our advisor will maintain risk management control systems to monitor interest rate cash flow risk attributable to both
our outstanding and forecasted debt obligations as well as our potential offsetting hedge positions. While this hedging strategy will
be designed to minimize the impact on our net income and funds from operations from changes in interest rates, the overall returns
on your investment may be reduced.
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As of March 31, 2017, all of our outstanding indebtedness accrued interest at a fixed rate and therefore an increase or
decrease in interest rates would have no effect on our interest expense. Interest rate fluctuations will generally not affect our
future earnings or cash flows on our fixed rate debt unless such instruments mature or are otherwise terminated. However,
interest rate changes will affect the fair value of our fixed rate instruments. As we expect to hold our fixed rate instruments to
maturity and the amounts due under such instruments would be limited to the outstanding principal balance and any accrued
and unpaid interest, we do not expect that fluctuations in interest rates, and the resulting change in fair value of our fixed rate
instruments, would have a significant impact on our operations.
The estimated fair value of our debt as of March 31, 2017 was $170,000,000 based on discounted cash flow analyses.
We are also exposed to interest rate risk and credit risk with respect to our notes receivable from related parties. The
notes receivable from related parties bear interest at fixed rates for the terms of the notes. Interest rate changes may affect the
fair value of both notes. As of March 31, 2017, the carrying value of both notes approximated their fair value.
We will also be exposed to credit risk with respect to any derivative contracts we enter into. Credit risk is the risk of
failure by the counterparty to perform its obligations under the terms of a derivative contract. If the fair value of a derivative
contract is positive, the counterparty will owe us, which creates credit risk for us. If the fair value of a derivative contract is
negative, we will owe the counterparty and, therefore, do not have credit risk. We will seek to minimize the credit risk in
derivative instruments by entering into transactions with high-quality counterparties. We did not hold any derivative contracts
in the quarters ended March 31, 2017 and 2016.
We plan to refinance three loans maturing in 2017. We plan to extend one loan and refinance the other two, either with a
new loan obtained by Moody II in connection with the merger or with new loans. We may not be able to extend or refinance
the foregoing loans at all, or be able to extend or refinance such loans on favorable terms.
ITEM 4.

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
As of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report, management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act). Based upon, and as of the date of, the evaluation, our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as
of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports we
file and submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported as and when required. Disclosure
controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to
be disclosed by us in the reports we file and submit under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our
management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended March
31, 2017 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting.
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PART II — OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

From time to time, we may be party to legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of our business. Management is
not aware of any legal proceedings of which the outcome is reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on our results
of operations or financial condition, nor are we aware of any such legal proceedings contemplated by government agencies.
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.
There have been no material changes to the risk factors contained in Part I, Item 1A set forth in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 23, 2017.
ITEM 2.

UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS.

In connection with the formation of the special committee of our board of directors, on March 24, 2016, our board of
directors suspended our share redemption program, in all cases other than death or qualifying disability, with such suspension
effective May 6, 2016, During the three months ended March 31, 2017, we fulfilled redemption requests and redeemed shares
of our common stock pursuant to our share redemption program because of stockholder death or disability as follows:

Total Number of
Shares Requested
to be Redeemed(1)
January 2017 ..............................................................................
—
February 2017 ............................................................................
3,485.58
March 2017 ................................................................................
—
3,485.58

Average Price
Paid per Share
$
—
$
10.75
$
—

Approximate
Dollar Value of
Shares
Available
That May Yet
Be Redeemed
Under the
Program
(2)
(2)
(2)

(1) We generally redeem shares on the last business day of the month following the end of each fiscal quarter in which
redemption requests were received. The 3,485.58 shares requested to be redeemed were redeemed during the quarter
ended March 31, 2017 at an average price of $10.75 per share.
(2) The number of shares that may be redeemed pursuant to the share redemption program during any calendar year is
limited to: (1) 5% of the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the prior calendar year and (2) those that
can be funded from the net proceeds we received from the sale of shares under the DRIP during the prior calendar year
plus such additional funds as may be reserved for that purpose by our board of directors. This volume limitation will not
apply to redemptions requested within two years after the death of a stockholder.
During the three months ended March 31, 2017, we did not sell any equity securities which were not registered under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
On April 15, 2009, our Registration Statement on Form S-11 (File No. 333-150612), registering our initial public
offering, was declared effective by the SEC and we commenced that offering. In our initial public offering we offered up to
$1,000,000,000 in shares of our common stock to the public at $10.00 per share and up to $100,000,000 in shares of our
common stock to our stockholders pursuant to the DRIP at $9.50 per share. On October 12, 2012, our Registration Statement
on Form S-11 (File No. 333-179521) registering our follow-on offering was declared effective by the SEC and our initial
public offering automatically terminated. In our follow-on offering we offered up to $900,000,000 in shares of our common
stock to the public at $10.00 per share and up to $100,000,000 in shares of our common stock to our stockholders pursuant to
the DRIP at $9.50 per share.
Effective February 20, 2015, we terminated the offer and sale of shares of our common stock to the public in our followon offering, and continued to issue shares pursuant to the DRIP. On November 4, 2015, we filed a new Registration
Statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-207805) with the SEC to register the sale of up to $25,000,000 in shares of our
common stock in our DRIP offering.
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Upon the termination of our follow-on offering, we had accepted investors’ subscriptions for, and issued 11,716,151
shares of our common stock in that offering, including 510,457 shares of our common stock issued pursuant to the DRIP,
resulting in aggregate gross offering proceeds of $112,056,934. As of March 31, 2017, we have raised $128,154,018 in gross
offering proceeds in our initial public offering and our follow-on offering, including through shares issued pursuant to the
DRIP. We continue to offer shares of common stock pursuant to the DRIP offering.
As of March 31, 2017, we had incurred selling commissions, dealer manager fees and organization and other offering
costs in our initial public offering and our follow-on offering, including shares issued pursuant to the DRIP in those offerings,
in the amounts set forth in the tables below. Moody Securities, LLC, our dealer manager, re-allowed all of the selling
commissions and a portion of the dealer manager fees to participating broker-dealers.
Initial Public Offering
Type of Expense
Selling commissions and dealer manager fees ..........................................................
Finders’ fees .............................................................................................................
Expenses paid to or for underwriters ........................................................................
Other organization and offering costs .......................................................................
Total expenses ..........................................................................................................

Amount
936,994
—
—
780,167
$ 1,717,161

Estimated/Actual
Actual
—
—
Actual

Amount
$ 11,102,398
—
—
3,022,804
$ 14,125,202

Estimated/Actual
Actual
—
—
Actual

$

Follow-On Offering
Type of Expense
Selling commissions and dealer manager fees ..........................................................
Finders’ fees .............................................................................................................
Expenses paid to or for underwriters ........................................................................
Other organization and offering costs .......................................................................
Total expenses ..........................................................................................................
DRIP Offering
We do not pay any selling commissions or dealer manager fees in connection with the offering of shares pursuant to our
DRIP offering. As of March 31, 2017, we had incurred $124,000 of offering costs in connection with our DRIP offering.
As of March 31, 2017, the net offering proceeds to us from our initial public offering and our follow-on offering, after
deducting the total expenses incurred as described above, were $107,183,899 excluding $5,130,370 in offering proceeds from
shares of our common stock issued pursuant to the DRIP. As of March 31, 2017, the ratio of the cost of raising capital to
capital raised was approximately 13%.
As of March 31, 2017, we had used $100,263,585 of the net proceeds from our public offerings, plus debt financing, to
purchase (1) our fourteen investments in hotel properties (including our investments in an interest in a Residence Inn
property, which was subsequently sold on August 23, 2012, and a hotel property in Newark, California, which was sold on
September 9, 2015), (2) the Hyatt Place note (which was paid in full on June 10, 2016) and (3) the two notes receivable from
related parties. As of December 31, 2016, we had paid $11,320,432 of acquisition expenses.
For more information regarding how we used our net offering proceeds through March 31, 2017, see our financial
statements included in this Quarterly Report.
ITEM 3.

DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES.

None.
ITEM 4.

MINE SAFTEY DISCLOSURES.

Not applicable.
ITEM 5.

OTHER INFORMATION.

None.
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ITEM 6.

EXHIBITS.

3.1

Second Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Moody National REIT I, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.1 the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 14, 2014 and incorporated herein by
reference)

3.2

Bylaws of Moody National REIT I, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form S-11 (No. 333-150612) and incorporated herein by reference)

3.3

Amendment No. 1 to Bylaws of Moody National REIT I, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.3 to Pre-Effective
Amendment No. 4 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-11 (No. 333-150612) and
incorporated herein by reference)

4.1

Form of Account Update Form (included as Appendix B to prospectus included in Post-Effective
Amendment No. 8 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-11 (No. 333-179521) and
incorporated by reference herein)

4.2

Moody National REIT I, Inc. Amended and Restated Distribution Reinvestment Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form S-3 (No. 333-207805))

10.1

Amendment No. 7 to the Amended and Restated Advisory Agreement, dated March 22, 2017, by and
among Moody National REIT I, Inc., Moody National Operating Partnership I, L.P., Moody National
Advisor I, LLC and Moody National Realty Company, L.P. (filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016 and incorporated herein by reference)

31.1*

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2*

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1*

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2*

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

101.INS

XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

* Filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
MOODY NATIONAL REIT I, INC.
Date: May 15, 2017

By: /s/ Brett C. Moody
Brett C. Moody
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: May 15, 2017

By: /s/ Robert W. Engel
Robert W. Engel
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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Amendment No. 7 to the Amended and Restated Advisory Agreement, dated March 22, 2017, by and among
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Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
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32.2*

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

101.INS

XBRL Instance Document
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101.CAL
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101.DEF

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
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XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
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XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

* Filed herewith.

EXHIBIT 31.1
Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, Brett C. Moody, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Moody National REIT I, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;
c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and
5.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):
a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.
Date: May 15, 2017
/s/ Brett C. Moody
Brett C. Moody
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)

EXHIBIT 31.2
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, Robert W. Engel, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Moody National REIT I, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;
c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and
5.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):
a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.
Date: May 15, 2017
/s/ Robert W. Engel
Robert W. Engel
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

EXHIBIT 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and in connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
of Moody National REIT I, Inc. (the “Company”) for the period ended March 31, 2017, as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned, the Chief Executive Officer and President of the
Company, certifies, to his knowledge, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.
Date: May 15, 2017
/s/ Brett C. Moody
Brett C. Moody
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)

EXHIBIT 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and in connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
of Moody National REIT I, Inc. (the “Company”) for the period ended March 31, 2017, as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned, the Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the
Company, certifies, to his knowledge, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.
Date: May 15, 2017
/s/ Robert W. Engel
Robert W. Engel
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

